
 
 
 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD MEETING/ 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT FINANCING AUTHORITY 

AGENDA 

Monday, September 28, 2020 

Regular Meeting ‐ 4:00 P.M. 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Administration Building 

5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA 94587 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) ADVISORY NOTICE 

 
 
Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20  from the Executive Department 
of the State of California, the Alameda County March 31, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, 
and Executive Order No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, the Monday, September 28, 2020, 
Regular Board Meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board Members will be 
teleconferencing into the meeting.  To maximize public safety while still maintaining 
transparency and public access, members of the public can observe the meeting by 
following the steps listed below to listen to the Board Meeting, and may provide public 
comment by sending comments to the Board Clerk by email at 
assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via voicemail by calling 510-477-7599 before          
3:00 p.m. on the date of the meeting.  Comments will then be read into the record, with a 
maximum allowance of 3 minutes per individual comment, subject to the Board President’s 
discretion.   All comments should be a maximum of 500 words, which corresponds to 
approximately 3 minutes of speaking time. If a comment is received after the agenda item is heard 
but before the close of the meeting, the comment will still be included as a part of the record of 
the meeting but will not be read into the record.  
 
Any member of the public who needs accommodations should email or call the Board Clerk who 
will use their best efforts to provide reasonable accommodations to provide as much accessibility 
as possible while also maintaining public safety in accordance with the Union Sanitary District 
procedure for resolving reasonable accommodation requests.   
 
To listen to this Regular Board Meeting: 
 
Call:  1-888-788-0099 or 1-877-853-5247 
 
Meeting ID:  871 1048 0143 # 
 
Participant ID:  # 
 
Click the Zoom link below to watch and listen: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87110480143 
 

1 of 122



1. Call to Order.   
 

 

2.  Salute to the Flag. (This item has been suspended due to the COVID‐19 pandemic.) 
   

 

3.  Roll Call. 
 

 

Motion  4.  Approve Minutes of the Union Sanitary District Board Meeting of September 14, 2020. 
 

 

Motion  5.  Approve  Minutes  of  the  Union  Sanitary  District  Special  Board  Meeting  of       
September 16, 2020. 
 

 

Information  6.  August 2020 Monthly Operations Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance and 
Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

 

7.  Written Communications. 
 

 

8.  Public Comment. 
  Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  

If the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item 
is considered.  Speaker cards will be available in the Boardroom and are requested to be completed 
prior to the start of the meeting. 
 

 

Motion  9.  Award the Construction Contract of the Aeration Blower No. 11 Project to Western 
Water  Constructors,  Inc.  (to  be  reviewed  by  the  Engineering  and  Information 
Technology Committee). 
 

 

Motion  10.  Review and Approve Job Descriptions and Salary Range for Environmental Health & 
Safety Specialist and Senior HR Analyst (to be reviewed by the Personnel Committee). 
 

 

Motion  11.  Review  and  Approve  Job  Description,  Salary  Range,  and  Side  Letter  Agreement 
Between the District and Service Employees International Union Local 1021 (SEIU) for 
Control Systems Specialist (to be reviewed by the Personnel Committee). 
 

 

Direction  12.  Discuss  and  Provide Direction  Regarding  Potential Use  of  Video  for  Virtual  Board 
Meetings. 
 

 

Information  13.  Status Report on Computer Purchase and Student Loan Program (to be reviewed by 
the Budget & Finance Committee). 
 

 

Information  14.  Annual  Report  to  Union  City  Fiscal  Year  2020  (to  be  reviewed  by  the  Legislative 
Committee). 
 

 

Information  15.  COVID‐19 Update.  
 

 

Information  16.  Check Register. 
 

 

Information         17.  Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  
a. Legislative Committee – Wednesday, September 23, 2020, 1:30 p.m. 

 Director Lathi and Director Fernandez 

b. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – Thursday, September 24, 2020, at 1:00 p.m. 

2 of 122



 Director Toy and Director Fernandez 

c. Personnel Committee – Thursday, September 24, 2020, at 1:30 p.m. 

 Director Kite and Director Handley 

d. Budget & Finance Committee – Friday, September 25, 2020, at 10:00 a.m. 

 Director Kite and Director Toy 

e. Engineering and Information Technology Committee – Friday, September 25, 2020, at 11:00 a.m. 

 Director Lathi and Director Handley 

f. Audit Committee – will not meet. 
 

 

Information         18.    General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board). 
 

 

      19.     Other Business: 
a.  Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District business and are 

welcome to request information from staff. 
b.  Scheduling matters for future consideration.  
 
 

 

      20.  Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to a Special Meeting Closed Session to be held 
virtually on Thursday, October 1, 2020, at 4:00 p.m.  
 

 

21.  Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting to be 
held virtually on Monday, October 12, 2020, at 4:00 p.m. 
 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the 
meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

3 of 122



 

 

 

 
 

 

LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Lathi and Director Fernandez 

 

AGENDA 

Wednesday, September 23, 2020 

1:30 P.M. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of 
California, the Alameda County May 18, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, and Executive Order             

No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, this meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board 
Members will be teleconferencing into the meeting via conference call.  

To maximize public safety while still maintaining public access, members of the public can observe the 
meeting by calling 510-477-6190  to listen to the committee meeting, and may provide public comment by 
sending comments to the Board Clerk by email at assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via voicemail by 

calling 510-477-7599 up to one hour before the scheduled meeting start time.  
 

1.    Call to Order 
 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If 
the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is 
considered.  Speaker cards will be available and are requested to be completed prior to the start of the 
meeting. 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of September 28, 2020: 

 Annual Report to Union City Fiscal Year 2020   
 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  

No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at 
the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the 

meeting. 

4 of 122



 

 

 

 
 

 

LEGAL/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Toy and Director Fernandez 

 

AGENDA 

Thursday, September 24, 2020 

1:00 P.M. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of 
California, the Alameda County May 18, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, and Executive Order             

No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, this meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board 
Members will be teleconferencing into the meeting via conference call.  

To maximize public safety while still maintaining public access, members of the public can observe the 
meeting by calling 510-477-6190  to listen to the committee meeting, and may provide public comment by 
sending comments to the Board Clerk by email at assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via voicemail by 

calling 510-477-7599 up to one hour before the scheduled meeting start time.  
 

1.    Call to Order 
 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If the 
comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  
Speaker cards will be available and are requested to be completed prior to the start of the meeting. 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of September 28, 2020: 

 August 2020 Monthly Operations Report – Odor and Work Group Reports 
 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  

No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at 
the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the 

meeting. 

5 of 122



 

 

 

 
 

 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Kite and Director Handley 

 

AGENDA 

Thursday, September 24, 2020 

1:30 P.M. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of 
California, the Alameda County May 18, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, and Executive Order             

No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, this meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board 
Members will be teleconferencing into the meeting via conference call.  

To maximize public safety while still maintaining public access, members of the public can observe the 
meeting by calling 510-477-6190  to listen to the committee meeting, and may provide public comment by 
sending comments to the Board Clerk by email at assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via voicemail by 

calling 510-477-7599 up to one hour before the scheduled meeting start time.  
 

1.    Call to Order 
 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If the 
comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  
Speaker cards will be available and are requested to be completed prior to the start of the meeting. 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of September 28, 2020: 

 Review and Approve Job Descriptions and Salary Range for Environmental Health & Safety 
Specialist and Senior HR Analyst  

 Review and Approve Job Description, Salary Range, and Side Letter Agreement Between 
the District  and  Service  Employees  International Union  Local  1021  (SEIU)  for  Control 
Systems Specialist 

 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  

No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at 
the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the 

meeting. 

6 of 122



 

 

 

 
 

 

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Kite and Director Toy 

 

AGENDA 

Friday, September 25, 2020 

10:00 A.M. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of 
California, the Alameda County May 18, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, and Executive Order             

No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, this meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board 
Members will be teleconferencing into the meeting via conference call.  

To maximize public safety while still maintaining public access, members of the public can observe the 
meeting by calling 510-477-6190  to listen to the committee meeting, and may provide public comment by 
sending comments to the Board Clerk by email at assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via voicemail by 

calling 510-477-7599 up to one hour before the scheduled meeting start time.  
 

1.    Call to Order 
 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If 
the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is 
considered.  Speaker cards will be available and are requested to be completed prior to the start of the 
meeting. 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of September 28, 2020: 

 August 2020 Monthly Operations Report – Financial Reports 

 Status Report on Computer Purchase and Student Loan Program 
 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  

No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at 
the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the 

meeting. 

7 of 122



 

 

 

 
 

 

ENGINEERING AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Lathi and Director Handley 
 

AGENDA 

Friday, September 25, 2020 

11:00 A.M. 
 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of California, 
the Alameda County May 18, 2020 Updated Shelter in Place Order, and Executive Order No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, 

this meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board Members will be teleconferencing into the meeting via 
conference call.  To maximize public safety while still maintaining public access, members of the public can observe the 

meeting by calling 510-477-6190  to listen to the committee meeting, and may provide public comment by sending 
comments to the Board Clerk by email at assistanttogm@unionsanitary.ca.gov or via voicemail by calling 510-477-7599 up 

to one hour before the scheduled meeting start time.  
 

1.    Call to Order 
 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
Public Comment is limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  If 
the comment relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is 
considered.  Speaker cards will be available and are requested to be completed prior to the start of the 
meeting. 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of September 28, 2020: 

 Award the Construction Contract of the Aeration Blower No. 11 Project to Western Water 
Constructors, Inc.  

 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  

No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at 
the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the 

meeting. 

8 of 122



 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT/UNION SANITARY DISTRICT FINANCING 

AUTHORITY 
SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 

 
Consistent with Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and No. N-29-20  from the Executive 

Department of the State of California, the Alameda County March 16, 2020 Shelter in 
Place Order, and Executive Order No. N-33-20, Stay-at-Home Order, the Monday,          

September 14, 2020, Regular Board Meeting was not physically open to the public and all 
Board Members teleconferenced into the meeting.  To maximize public safety while still 

maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public were able to listen to 
the Board Meeting, and provide public comment by sending comments to the  

Board Clerk. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
President Handley called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  The regular meeting time 
was modified due to the COVID-19 emergency. 
 
SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Tom Handley, President 

Pat Kite, Vice President 
Anjali Lathi, Secretary  
Manny Fernandez, Director 

 
ABSENT: Jennifer Toy, Director (arrived at 4:45 p.m.) 
 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Karen Murphy, District Counsel  
  Mark Carlson, Business Services Manager/CFO 

Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
Armando Lopez, Treatment and Disposal Services Manager 
James Schofield, Collection Services Manager 
Robert Simonich, Fabrication Construction and Maintenance Manager 
Jason Yeates, Organizational Performance Coordinator 
Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 

 
 
APPROVE MINUTES OF THE UNION SANITARY DISTRICT BOARD MEETING OF 

AUGUST 24, 2020 
 
It was moved by Vice President Kite, seconded by Director Fernandez, to Approve the 
Minutes of the Board Meeting of August 24, 2020.  Motion carried with the following 
vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 

9 of 122



 
ABSENT: Toy 
 
APPROVE MINUTES OF THE UNION SANITARY DISTRICT SPECIAL BOARD 

MEETING OF AUGUST 27, 2020 
 
It was moved by Director Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Lathi, to Approve the 
Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of August 27, 2020.  Motion carried with the 
following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Toy 
 
FOURTH QUARTER FISCAL YEAR 2020 DISTRICT-WIDE BALANCED SCORECARD 

MEASURES 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee. Organizational 
Performance Coordinator Yeates provided an overview of the District-wide Balanced 
Scorecard Measures and responded to Boardmember questions. 
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no written communications. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
DESIGNATE AND APPOINT TWO BOARD REPRESENTATIVES TO AD HOC 
SUBCOMMITTEE ON GENERAL MANAGER CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS 
 
District Counsel Murphy stated the Board considers this action annually prior to 
scheduling the General Manager’s performance evaluation.  Staff recommended the 
Board appoint two representatives to the Ad Hoc Subcommittee on General Manager 
Contract Negotiations. 
 
It was moved by President Handley, seconded by Director Kite, to Appoint President 
Handley and Director Toy to the Ad Hoc Subcommittee on General Manager Contract 
Negotiations.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Toy 
 
REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF POLICY NO. 3045, BOARD EDUCATION 
AND TRAINING BUDGET 
 

10 of 122



 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Executive 
Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk McEvoy stated the proposed edits to the 
Policy consist of minor updates to language and extending the review period from three 
to five years.  Staff recommended the Board approve proposed revisions to Policy No. 
3045, Board Education and Training Budget. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Lathi, seconded by Director Fernandez, to Approve Policy    
No. 3045, Board Education and Training Budget.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Toy 
 
CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT SANITARY SEWER EASEMENTS FOR 
TRACT 8417 – SANCTUARY VILLAGE 1 AND TRACT 8419 – SANCTUARY 
VILLAGE 3, LOCATED AT CHERRY STREET AND STEVENSON BOULEVARD, IN 
THE CITY OF NEWARK 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated LS-Newark, LLC, Arroyo Cap III, LLC, and KB Sanctuary, 
LLC, will construct residential developments at the southwest corner of Cherry Street 
and Stevenson Boulevard.  Some of the roadways within the developments do not meet 
the City of Newark’s street dimensions and structure setback requirements for public 
streets and were designated as private.  The developers have constructed the new 
sewer mains within the private roadways and have granted the District sanitary sewer 
easements that provide for access and maintenance of the new sewer mains.  Staff 
recommended the Board consider a resolution to accept sanitary sewer easements for 
Tract 8417 – Sanctuary Village 1, and Tract 8419 – Sanctuary Village 3, located at the 
southwest corner of Cherry Street and Stevenson Boulevard, in the city of Newark. 
 
It was moved by Director Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Lathi, to Adopt Resolution 
No. 2903 to Accept a Sanitary Sewer Easement for Tract 8417 – Sanctuary Village, and 
a Sanitary Sewer Easement for Tract 8419 – Sanctuary Village 3, in the City of Newark, 
California.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Toy 
 
REVIEW AND CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE POLICY 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  District Counsel 
Murphy stated staff prepared, at the Board’s direction, a proposed Electronic Signature 
Policy to implement the use of electronic signatures for the execution of agreements, 
letters, permits, and other internal or contractual records.  Adoption of an Electronic 
Signature Policy would increase efficiency, particularly during the COVID-19 pandemic, 
by taking advantage of technological advances and state laws that allow for use of 
electronic signatures.  California Government Code section 16.5 authorizes public 

11 of 122



 
entities to accept “digital signatures” if they comply with certain verification procedures 
and security standards.  California Civil Code section 1633.1 et seq., known as the 
Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (UETA), allows for and sets forth standards that 
govern electronic records and electronic signatures.   
 
The proposed policy prepared by staff provided that legislative documents, including 
District ordinances, resolutions, and minutes, would be included in the list of documents 
for which electronic signatures would be prohibited.  This was based on the fact that 
state law does not address the use of electronic signatures for legislative documents, 
such as ordinances, resolutions, and minutes.  Requiring “wet” signatures would be 
consistent with past practice and District record-keeping; the use of electronic 
signatures creates a lengthier public record due to the number of pages required to be 
attached for signature verification.  However, as state law does not explicitly disallow 
the use of electronic signatures for legislative documents, the Board may direct staff to 
move these document types from the list of prohibited documents to permitted 
documents.  Staff recommended the Board review and consider approval of the 
Electronic Signature Policy. 
 
The Board directed staff to move District ordinances, resolutions, and minutes from the 
list of prohibited documents to permitted documents within the Policy. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Lathi, seconded by Director Fernandez, to Move District 
Ordinances, Resolutions, and Minutes from the List of Prohibited Documents to 
Permitted Documents Within the Policy and Approve the Electronic Signature Policy 
with this Change Incorporated.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Toy 
 
DETERMINE THAT ALL BIDS RECEIVED FOR THE SUPPLY AGREEMENT FOR 
THE STANDBY POWER GENERATION SYSTEM UPGRADE PROJECT ARE NON-
RESPONSIVE, AND REJECT ALL BIDS; AND DIRECT DISTRICT STAFF TO 
NEGOTIATE A SUPPLY AGREEMENT, STARTING WITH APPARENT LOW BIDDER 
CUMMINS SALES AND SERVICE, OR ALTERNATIVE ACTION 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the Supply Agreement for standby 
generator equipment for the Project was advertised for bids and the three bids received 
were opened August 6, 2020.  The bid results were summarized in a table included in 
the Board meeting packet.  All bidders’ submissions were non-responsive as they did 
not fully comply with the requirements included in the bid documents despite staff’s 
efforts to obtain responsive bids.  On August 13, 2020, the District received a bid protest 
from Peterson Power that identified commercial and technical requirements required by 
the bid documents that were not addressed in the bid proposals submitted by Cummins 
and Bay City.  Staff notified both Cummins and Bay City of the required deadline to 
provide written responses to the protest.  Cummins submitted a timely response, but it 
did not address all of the issues identified in the protest.  Bay City did not submit a 
response.  Staff and District Counsel reviewed the bids, Peterson Power’s bid protest 

12 of 122



 
and Cummins’ bid protest response and recommended the Board determine all bids to 
be non-responsive, reject all bids and proceed with one of two options outlined by staff 
in the Board meeting packet for this item.  None of the bidders submitted any public 
comment on this item. 
 
It was moved by Secretary Lathi, seconded by Director Kite, to Determine All Bids 
Received for the Supply Agreement for the Standby Power Generation System Upgrade 
Project were Non-Responsive, and Reject All Bids; Determine that Further Bidding on 
the Supply Agreement Would Not Produce an Advantage to the Public; and Direct 
District Staff to Negotiate an Acceptable Supply Agreement in the Best Interests of the 
District Starting with Apparent Low Bidder, Cummins Sales and Service, and if an 
Acceptable Agreement Cannot be Obtained with Cummins, Third Apparent Low Bidder, 
Peterson Power Systems, Inc.  If District Staff is Unable to Negotiate an Acceptable 
Supply Agreement with either Cummings or Peterson Power, Staff Should Take Such 
Further Actions as are Permitted by Law.  Motion carried with the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Lathi 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Toy 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
Status of Priority 1 Capital Improvement Program Projects 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee. 
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the Board approved the Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) budget of $19.73 million for design and construction of 24 
CIP projects in June of 2019.  The projects were ranked Priority 1, 2, or 3 based upon 
criteria prepared by staff and approved by the Executive Team.  There were 11 projects 
ranked as Priority 1 for Fiscal Year 2020.  The status of Priority 1 CIP projects is 
reviewed by the Executive Team at the end of each quarter and a copy of the status 
report was included in the Board meeting packet. 
 
Fourth Quarterly Report on the Capital Improvement Program for FY20 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee. 
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated fourth quarter expenditures for Fiscal 
Year 2020 were presented in graphs included in the Board meeting packet.  The graphs 
depicted actual expenditures versus approved budget for Capacity Fund 900, the 
Renewal and Replacement Fund 800, and for both funds combined.  Total CIP 
expenditures up to June 30, 2020, were under projections for the fourth quarter by 
approximately $6.8 million.  Projects that had significant variances from projected 
expenditures were presented in a table included in the Board meeting packet. 
 
Report on the East Bay Dischargers Authority Meeting of August 20, 2020 
General Manager Eldredge provided an overview of the EBDA Commission meeting 
minutes included in the Board meeting packet. 
 
COVID-19 Update 
General Manager Eldredge provided an update regarding COVID-19 impacts on District 
operations and association coordinated efforts.  

13 of 122



 
 

Check Register 
Staff responded to Boardmember questions regarding the check register. 
 
COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS: 
 
The Legal/Community Affairs and Engineering and Information Technology met.   
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
General Manager Eldredge stated the following: 

 The Board will receive a packet of materials in advance of the two upcoming 
General Manager’s Evaluation Closed Sessions. 

 Of the 27 bills the District had been monitoring, seven made it to the Governor’s 
desk for consideration.  Staff will send a summary of those seven bills to the 
Board via email. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
President Handley requested staff prepare an item to allow the Board to discuss 
potential use of video during virtual special Board meetings. 
 
Director Toy stated she attended the Alameda County Special District’s Association 
meeting and further stated the next meeting will be held October 18, 2020. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:07 p.m. to a Special Meeting Closed Session at            
2:00 p.m. on Wednesday, September 16, 2020. 
 
SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________   _________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     ANJALI LATHI 
BOARD CLERK     SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________ 
TOM HANDLEY 
PRESIDENT 

 
Adopted this 28th day of September 2020 

14 of 122



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

September 16, 2020 
 

Consistent with Executive Order No. N-25-20 from the Executive Department of 
the State of California and the Alameda County Public Health Department’s   

March 16, 2020 Shelter in Place Order, the District’s September 16, 2020, Special 
Meeting was not physically open to the public.  In order to maximize public safety 

while still maintaining transparency, members of the public were able to attend 
the public portion of the meeting telephonically. 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Handley called the special meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Tom Handley, President 
  Pat Kite, Vice President 
  Anjali Lathi, Secretary  
  Manny Fernandez, Director 
  Jennifer Toy, Director 
 
STAFF: Gene Boucher, Human Resources Manager 
  Karen Murphy, District Counsel 
  Leah Castella, Assistant District Counsel 
  Samantha Zutler, Special District Counsel 
  
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
The Union Sanitary District Board of Directors adjourned to closed session for the following:  
 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of  
Government Code Section 54956.9:  One potential case 
 
There was no reportable action. 
 
 
 

15 of 122



ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The special meeting was adjourned at approximately 2:45 p.m. to a Special Meeting to be held 
virtually on Wednesday, September 23, 2020, at 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________   __________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     ANJALI LATHI 
BOARD CLERK     SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
__________________________ 
TOM HANDLEY 
PRESIDENT 

 
 

Adopted this 28th day of September, 2020 

16 of 122



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
SEPTEMBER 28, 2020 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 6 

 
TITLE:  Monthly Operations Report for August 2020 (This is an Information Item)   
 
SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
     
 
Recommendation 
 
Information only. 
 
Previous Board Action 
 
None 
 
Background 
 
Attached  are  Monthly  Operations  Reports  for  August  2020.    Staff  is  available  to  answer 
questions regarding information contained in the report. 
 
Work Group Managers 
 

General Manager/Administration      Paul Eldredge    GM     
Collection Services          James Schofield  CS     
Technical Support          Sami Ghossain   TS     
Treatment and Disposal Services      Armando Lopez   T&D   
Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction   Robert Simonich  FMC 
 

 
ODOR COMPLAINTS:   
During the month of August 2020, there were three odor complaints received by the District.  
Details of the complaint were included in the Board meeting packet. 
 

17 of 122



STAFFING & PERSONNEL:   
 
Completed Recruitments: 

 PO III Trainee – Limited Term – new position.  Doroteo Loreto started 8/12/2020. 
 

Recruitments Opened:   
 Collection Services Conditional Lead Worker (internal only) 
 Instrumentation  Technician/Electrician  –  replacement  for  Yung  Lu  –  retirement 

12/30/2020. 
 
G.M. ACTIVITIES:  For the month of August, the General Manager was involved in the following: 
 

 Attended the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) JPA Commission Meeting 

 Attended the EBDA Manager’s Advisory Committee Meeting 

 Coordinated District response to COVID‐19 Pandemic 

 Attended CASA Virtual Conference 

 Conducted the General Manager’s Check‐in Board Workshop 
 

Attachments:  Odor Report and Map 
  Hours Worked and Leave Time by Work Group 
  Business Services 
  Technical Services 
  Collection Services 
  Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction 
  Treatment and Disposal Services 

18 of 122



 

  
 ODOR REPORT 
 August 2020 
 
 During the recording period from August 01, 2020 through August 31, 2020, there were three odor  
 related service requests received by the District. 
 
 
 City:  Fremont 

 

  1. Complaint Details: 
  Date:  8/16/2020 Time:   9:05 a.m. 
  Location:  LITCHFIELD CR Reported By:  Khalid 
  Wind (from): North West Wind Speed:  1 mph 
  Temperature:  82 Degrees F Weather: Partly Cloudy 
 

Response and Follow-up: 
 
USD staff responded to report of odor near residence.  USD staff visually inspected and gas 
tested the USD mains around residence, as well as storm drain inlets near  residence.  There 
were no stoppages or evidence of surcharge present. Drain inlets were clean  and no odors were 
detected.  USD staff followed up with homeowner and advised homeowner to  call again if odor 
returned.   
 
Homeowner later called at 10:40 p.m. to report odor had returned.  USD staff returned and 
re-inspected site. Unable to detect odor or determine what may have been the  source.   
 
No additional follow-up at this time is needed. 
 

 
 City:  Newark 

 

  2. Complaint Details: 
  Date:  8/16/2020 Time:   8:25 p.m. 
  Location:  RAVENWOOD AV Reported By:  Chris Peterson 
  Wind (from): North West Wind Speed:  3 mph 
  Temperature:  74 Degrees F Weather: Partly Cloudy 
 

Response and Follow-up: 
 
USD staff responded to report of foul odor near residence.  Staff visually inspected and gas  
tested sewer mains near the report location.  No evidence of odor or stoppage from USD mains  
nor local drain inlets were present. Staff provided homeowner handouts on vents and laterals.   
 
No follow-up action required at this time. 
 

 
 

19 of 122



 

 City:  Newark 

 

  3. Complaint Details: 
  Date:  8/17/2020 Time:   8:20 a.m. 
  Location:  PRESTON PL Reported By:  Kaveh Razzaghi 
  Wind (from): South West Wind Speed:  2.5 mph 
  Temperature:  81 Degrees F Weather: Hot/Clear 
 
 Response and Follow-up: 
 
 Homeowner called to report odor at residence.  Upon arrival at the residence, no odors  
 appeared to be present.  USD staff inspected the sewer main and storm drains.  USD staff then  
 followed up with the homeowner.  The homeowner shared that the odor is present only when the  
 air conditioning unit is running.  USD provided the homeowner with USD’s Traps and Vents  
 brochure and suggested that the homeowner may want to check the air conditioning filter.   
 
 No additional follow-up is required at this time. 

20 of 122



1. No odor found

#

!

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

!

#
#

#

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont

Newark

Union City

Location of Odor Reports
September 2019 to August 2020 .0 1 2 3 4 50.5

Miles

Legend
Odor Complaints: August 2020

Odor Complaints: Sep. 2019 to Jul. 2020
No odor found (3)

Odor found, not related to USD (2)
Odor found, USD resolved (0)

No odor found (10)

#

!

^

#

! Odor found, not related to USD (0)
^ Odor found, USD resolved (0)

3. No odor found

2. No odor found

1. No odor found

21 of 122



NOTES
(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part-time or temporary employees.
(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 
(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, 
     Paid Admin., AWHIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.
(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves as well as protected time off, of which the District has
     no discretion.
(5) Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) - Emergency Paid Sick Leave (EPSL) and Paid Expanded Famil      

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34.9 hours

per week over the course of a year; with 20 vacation days, 34.2 hours per week.

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP
June 25, 2020 through August 19, 2020

Weeks to Date: 8 out of 52 (15.38%)

- 8.6 7.2 2.7 9.2 

20.4 

9.9 
0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

Average Annual Sick Leave Used Per Employee to Date 

Target is 47

35.7 37.1 35.0 36.8 37.4 35.4 36.3 

 -

 5.0

 10.0

 15.0

 20.0

 25.0

 30.0

 35.0

 40.0

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

At-Work Hours Per Employee Per Week

Target is 34

22 of 122



Regular                       
(1)

Overtime               
(2)

Discretionary 
(3)

Short 
Term 

Disability

Workers 
Comp 

Sick                     
(4)

FFCRA Paid 
Leave

(5)

Average 
Number of 
Employees

At-Work 
Hours Per 
Week Per 
Employee

Annual 
Sick Leave 

Used

GM 2 560.50            -                 35.7 79.50            -            -            -            -                0.0 2 34.9 35.9
BS 18 5,200.25         50.50            37.1 404.27          -            -            155.48     -                8.6 17 36.6 36.8

FMC 27 7,402.00         16.00            35.0 895.00          123.50     -            180.80     13.00           7.2 28 34.2 33.0
TD 28 8,053.40         50.83            36.8 886.85          -            -            37.75       38.00           2.7 27 35.4 48.8
TS 32 9,383.75         14.08            37.4 290.57          17.10        -            242.83     50.75           9.2 33 35.0 48.5
CS 32 8,596.75         315.21          35.4 943.75          46.80        -            565.73     86.97           20.4 31 33.9 91.2

All Groups 139 39,196.65      446.62          36.3 3,499.94      187.40     -            1,182.59 188.72         9.9 138 35.1 50.5

SICK LEAVE INCENTIVE PROGRAM TARGETS ≥34 ≤47
The Sick Leave Incentive Program target goals are 47 or less hours of sick leave per employee annually, and 34 or more hours of at-work time per week per employee. 

NOTES

(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part-time or temporary employees.

(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 

(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, Paid Admin., AWHIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.

(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves, as well as protected time off, of which the District has no discretion.

(5) Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) - Emergency Paid Sick Leave (EPSL) and Paid Expanded Family Medical Leave Act (Paid EFMLA)

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34.9 hours per week over the course of a year;  

with 20 vacation days, 34.2 hours per week.

LEAVE HOURS FY20

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP
June 25, 2020 through August 19, 2020

Weeks to Date: 8 out of 52 (15.38%)

Average Annual 
Sick Leave Used 
Per Employee To 

Date

AT-WORK HOURS At-Work Hours 
Per Employee 

Per Week

Group Average 
Number of 
Employees

23 of 122



 BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT

FY 2021       Year-to-date as of 8/31/2020 16.7% of year elapsed

Unaudited
Revenues % of  Last Year

Budget Actual Budget Rec'd Actuals 6/30/20
  Capacity Fees 5,712,200$            777,753$  14% 14,179,464$           
  Sewer Service Charges 60,500,000            (8,026) 0% 57,260,030             
  Operating (Includes work groups and fund 85) 1,293,500 128,202 10% 1,169,481 
  Interest 1,150,000 268,246 23% 3,178,106 
  Misc. (Annex fees, forfeited deposits) 75,000 12,299 16% 25,673 

 Subtotal Revenues 68,730,700$          1,178,474 2% 75,812,754$           

  Bond Proceeds - - 0.0% 73,609,860             

Total Revenues + Bond Proceeds 68,730,700$          1,178,474$               2% 149,422,614$         

Expenses % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

  Capital Improvement Program:
       Capacity Proj. 22,630,500$          1,162,577$  5% 6,630,350$             
       Renewal & Repl. Proj. 20,052,000            575,052 3% 4,368,305 
  Operating (includes fund 85) 45,075,355            5,252,798 12% 39,923,527             
  Special Projects 2,723,000 119,960 4% 1,249,410 
  Retiree Medical (ADC) 1,208,354 - 0% 1,392,371 
  Vehicle & Equipment 77,868 34,306 44% 42,258 
  Information Systems 960,800 261,645 27% 465,523 
  Plant & Pump Stat. R&R 400,000 - 0% 244,669 
  Emerg. Fund - - 0% - 
  Cty Fee for SSC Admin. 111,000 - 0% 109,988 
  Debt Servicing:

SRF Loans - 39,670,259             
Bonds  4,684,773 3,540,572 76% - 

Total Expenses 97,923,650$          10,946,910$             11% 94,096,660$           

Total Revenue & Proceeds less Expenses (29,192,950)$        (9,768,436)$             55,325,954 

Unaudited
Operating (Work Group) Expenses % of  Last Year

Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals
Board of Directors 180,354$  16,666$  9% 134,873$  
General Manager/Admin. 1,066,753 102,091 10% 889,813 
Business Services 4,169,231 490,356 12% 3,561,371 
Collection Services 7,623,414 932,386 12% 6,996,512 
Technical Services 6,815,278 883,174 13% 6,446,693 
Treatment & Disposal Services 15,187,206            1,741,839 11% 12,636,368             
Fabrication, Maint. & Construction 9,050,619 1,043,475 12% 8,551,289 
Non-Departmental 982,500 42,811 4% 706,608 

Total 45,075,355$          5,252,798$  12% 39,923,527$           

Operating (Work Group) Expenses by Type % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Personnel (incl D&E) 30,366,922$          3,862,063$  13% 27,524,005$           
Repairs & Maintenance 2,416,400 227,692 9% 2,388,026 
Supplies & Matls (chemicals, small tools) 3,457,020 237,411 7% 3,051,814 
Outside Services (utilities, biosolids, legal) 8,517,513 916,872 11% 6,737,202 
Fixed Assets 317,500 8,760 3% 222,480 

Total 45,075,355$          5,252,798$  12% 39,923,527$           

24 of 122



REVENUES AND EXPENSES REPORT 
as of 8/31/20

5,712,200

60,500,000 

1,293,500 1,150,000 75,000 -777,753

(8,026)

128,202 268,246 12,299 -

 $(10,000,000)

 $-

 $10,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $50,000,000

 $60,000,000

 $70,000,000

  Capacity Fees   Sewer Service
Charges

  Operating (Includes
work groups and

fund 85)

  Interest   Misc. (Annex fees,
forfeited deposits)

  Bond Proceeds

Total Revenues
 Budget  Actual

22,630,500

20,052,000 

45,075,355 

2,723,000 

1,208,354 
77,868 

960,800 400,000 
-

111,000 
-

4,684,773 

1,162,577 575,052 

5,252,798 119,960 

- 34,306 261,645 -
- -

3,540,572 

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $45,000,000

 $50,000,000

       Capacity
Proj.

       Renewal
& Repl. Proj.

  Operating
(includes
fund 85)

  Special
Projects

  Retiree
Medical

(ADC)

  Vehicle &
Equipment

  Information
Systems

  Plant &
Pump Stat.

R&R

  Emerg.
Fund

  Cty Fee for
SSC Admin.

SRF Loans Bonds

Total Expenses
 Budget  Actual

25 of 122



REVENUES AND EXPENSES REPORT 
as of 8/31/20

180,354
1,066,753

4,169,231

7,623,414
6,815,278

15,187,206

9,050,619

982,500

16,666 102,091 490,356 932,386 883,174
1,741,839

1,043,475

42,811
 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $14,000,000

 $16,000,000

Operating Expenses by Work Group
 Budget  Actual

30,366,922

2,416,400
3,457,020

8,517,513

317,500

3,862,063

227,692 237,411 916,872 
8,760 

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

Personnel (incl D&E) Repairs & Maintenance Supplies & Matls
(chemicals, small tools)

Outside Services
(utilities, biosolids, legal)

Fixed Assets

Operating Expenses by Type
 Budget  Actual

26 of 122



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Performance Measures for the USD Investment Portfolio    
 
 

 
 
 
 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

Average Monthly Yield

LAIF 2 Year Treasury USD Yield

 Apr’20 May’20 Jun’20 Jul’20 Aug’20 

LAIF 1.65% 1.36% 1.22% 0.92% 0.78% 

2 Year Treasury 0.20% 0.16% 0.16% 0.11% 0.14% 

USD Yield 1.55% 1.35% 1.19% 1.08% 0.95% 

Business Services Group  
August 2020 

27 of 122



 

 

28 of 122



Union Sanitary District
Portfolio Holdings
Board Report - Holdings
Report Format: By Transaction
Group By: Asset Class
Average By: Cost Value
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 8/31/2020

Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

Agencies

FFCB 0.23 6/9/2022 3133ELH64 S&P-AA+ 6/9/2020 1,635,000.00 1,631,730.00 0.230 1,634,493.15 0.330 6/9/2022 1.01

FFCB 1.15 4/9/2025-20 3133ELWC4 S&P-AA+ 4/14/2020 1,620,000.00 1,620,000.00 1.150 1,620,016.20 1.150 10/9/2020 4/9/2025 1.00

FHLB 0.5 4/14/2025 3130AJHU6 None 4/16/2020 560,000.00 557,222.40 0.500 563,136.00 0.601 4/14/2025 0.34

FHLB 1.375 2/17/2023 3130AJ7E3 None 2/21/2020 775,000.00 773,574.00 1.375 797,482.75 1.438 2/17/2023 0.48

FHLB 2 10/26/2021-19 3130AB3D6 None 4/26/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.000 1,021,590.00 2.000 10/26/2021 0.62

FHLMC 0.25 6/26/2023 3137EAES4 None 6/26/2020 780,000.00 777,722.40 0.250 779,976.60 0.348 6/26/2023 0.48

FHLMC 0.25 8/24/2023 3137EAEV7 None 8/21/2020 520,000.00 519,469.60 0.250 519,896.00 0.284 8/24/2023 0.32

FHLMC 0.375 5/5/2023 3137EAER6 S&P-AA 5/29/2020 495,000.00 495,688.05 0.375 496,301.85 0.327 5/5/2023 0.31

FHLMC 0.375 7/21/2025 3137EAEU9 None 7/23/2020 525,000.00 522,385.50 0.375 523,913.25 0.476 7/21/2025 0.32

FHLMC 1.1 4/28/2025-
20 3134GVNJ3 Moodys-

Aaa 4/28/2020 1,009,000.00 1,010,261.25 1.100 1,010,039.27 1.074 10/28/2020 4/28/2025 0.62

FHLMC 1.5 2/12/2025 3137EAEP0 None 2/14/2020 1,035,000.00 1,034,203.05 1.500 1,085,849.55 1.516 2/12/2025 0.64

FNMA 0.25 5/22/2023 3135G04Q3 None 5/22/2020 865,000.00 862,396.35 0.250 865,856.35 0.351 5/22/2023 0.53

FNMA 0.25 7/10/2023 3135G05G4 None 7/10/2020 1,095,000.00 1,092,645.75 0.250 1,095,065.70 0.322 7/10/2023 0.67

FNMA 0.375 8/25/2025 3135G05X7 None 8/27/2020 555,000.00 552,402.60 0.375 553,595.85 0.470 8/25/2025 0.34

FNMA 0.5 6/17/2025 3135G04Z3 None 6/19/2020 865,000.00 863,209.45 0.500 867,491.20 0.542 6/17/2025 0.53

FNMA 0.5 8/14/2025-23 3135G05S8 S&P-AA+ 8/24/2020 1,000,000.00 998,400.00 0.500 998,030.00 0.533 8/14/2023 8/14/2025 0.62

FNMA 0.625 4/22/2025 3135G03U5 None 4/24/2020 875,000.00 873,197.50 0.625 882,936.25 0.667 4/22/2025 0.54

FNMA 0.625 4/22/2025 3135G03U5 None 4/28/2020 125,000.00 124,763.75 0.625 126,133.75 0.664 4/22/2025 0.08

FNMA 1.625 1/7/2025 3135G0X24 S&P-AA+ 3/5/2020 395,000.00 409,690.05 1.625 417,218.75 0.839 1/7/2025 0.25

FNMA 1.625 10/15/2024 3135G0W66 Fitch-AAA 11/25/2019 1,000,000.00 997,860.00 1.625 1,054,200.00 1.671 10/15/2024 0.62

FNMA 1.875 4/5/2022 3135G0T45 S&P-AA+ 3/16/2020 970,000.00 993,619.50 1.875 996,490.70 0.678 4/5/2022 0.61

Sub Total / Average 
Agencies 17,699,000.00 17,710,441.20 0.867 17,909,713.17 0.824 10.94

Asset-Backed Security

Page 1 of 5

29 of 122



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

Carmax Auto Owner 
Trust 1.89 12/16/2024 14315XAC2 S&P-AAA 1/22/2020 185,000.00 184,963.70 1.890 190,445.72 1.895 12/16/2024 0.11

Honda Auto Receivables 
2020-1 1.61 4/22/2024-
23

43813RAC1 None 2/26/2020 305,000.00 304,940.22 1.610 312,152.77 1.615 5/21/2023 4/22/2024 0.19

Toyota Auto Receivables 
2020-A A3 1.66 
5/15/2024

89232HAC9 None 2/12/2020 415,000.00 414,970.04 1.660 424,916.22 1.662 5/15/2024 0.26

Sub Total / Average 
Asset-Backed Security 905,000.00 904,873.96 1.690 927,514.71 1.694 0.56

CAMP

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 None 5/31/2011 22,031,285.25 22,031,285.25 0.300 22,031,285.25 0.300 N/A N/A 13.60

Sub Total / Average 
CAMP 22,031,285.25 22,031,285.25 0.300 22,031,285.25 0.300 13.60

Cash in Banks

Union Bank Cash LGIPUNIONBANK None 12/31/2016 8,995,221.98 8,995,221.98 0.010 8,995,221.98 0.010 N/A N/A 5.55

Sub Total / Average 
Cash in Banks 8,995,221.98 8,995,221.98 0.010 8,995,221.98 0.010 5.55

Certificates of Deposit

American Expr 
Centurion 2.45 4/5/2022 02587DN38 None 4/5/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.450 255,532.02 2.450 4/5/2022 0.15

Belmont Savings Bank 
2.15 3/22/2022 080515BV0 None 3/20/2017 248,000.00 248,000.00 2.150 255,101.73 2.150 3/22/2022 0.15

BMW Bank 2.15 
3/10/2022 05580AGR9 None 3/10/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.150 253,937.07 2.150 3/10/2022 0.15

Capital One Bank 1.5 
10/26/2020 140420L99 None 10/26/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 1.500 248,556.44 1.500 10/26/2020 0.15

Credit Agricole CIB NY 
2.83 4/2/2021 22535CDU2 None 4/4/2019 575,000.00 575,000.00 2.830 583,883.12 2.830 4/2/2021 0.36

Credit Suisse0.59 
2/1/2022 22549L6F7 S&P-A1 8/7/2020 435,000.00 435,000.00 0.590 436,041.04 0.590 2/1/2022 0.27

Discover Bank 2.25 
12/29/2021 254672Y36 None 12/29/2016 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.250 253,326.71 2.250 12/29/2021 0.15

DNB Nor Bank ASA 2.04 
12/2/2022 23341VZT1 NR 12/6/2019 430,000.00 430,000.00 2.040 447,809.65 2.040 12/2/2022 0.27

Ponce De Leon Federal 
Bank 1.85 5/28/2021 732333AJ8 None 5/31/2017 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.850 251,923.09 1.850 5/28/2021 0.15

Societe Generale NY 1.8 
2/14/2022 83369XDL9 None 2/19/2020 570,000.00 570,000.00 1.800 582,205.30 1.800 2/14/2022 0.35

Page 2 of 5

30 of 122



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

State Bank of India 2.25 
1/26/2022

8562846A7 None 1/26/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.250 253,624.34 2.250 1/26/2022 0.15

Sumitomo Mitsui Bank 
NY 0.7 7/8/2022 86565CKU2 None 7/14/2020 435,000.00 435,000.00 0.700 438,582.14 0.700 7/8/2022 0.27

Synchrony Bank 2.3 
2/24/2022 87165ELT2 None 2/28/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.300 254,250.66 2.300 2/24/2022 0.15

Sub Total / Average 
Certificates of Deposit 4,425,000.00 4,425,000.00 1.870 4,514,773.31 1.870 2.73

Commercial Paper

MUFG Bank LTD/NY 0 
2/22/2021 62479LPN9 S&P-A1 8/24/2020 1,000,000.00 998,837.22 0.000 999,035.90 0.230 2/22/2021 0.62

Sub Total / Average 
Commercial Paper 1,000,000.00 998,837.22 0.000 999,035.90 0.230 0.62

Corporate Issues

Amazon.com Inc. 2.4 
2/22/2023 023135AW6 Fitch-A+ 4/15/2019 675,000.00 668,499.75 2.400 708,615.00 2.664 2/22/2023 0.41

American Express Credit 
2.7 3/3/2022 0258M0EG0 Moodys-A2 5/15/2017 1,000,000.00 1,013,279.67 2.700 1,033,630.00 2.406 3/3/2022 0.63

American Honda 
Finance 1.95 5/10/2023 02665WDH1 None 1/10/2020 415,000.00 414,846.45 1.950 430,533.45 1.962 5/10/2023 0.26

Apple Inc 0.75 5/11/2023 037833DV9 S&P-AA+ 5/11/2020 325,000.00 324,116.00 0.750 329,160.00 0.842 5/11/2023 0.20

Bank of America Corp 
4.1 7/24/2023 06053FAA7 Fitch-A 3/22/2019 500,000.00 520,405.00 4.100 551,460.00 3.087 7/24/2023 0.32

BB&T Corporation 3.05 
6/20/2022-22 05531FBG7 Fitch-A+ 3/22/2019 525,000.00 525,714.00 3.050 548,493.75 3.006 5/20/2022 6/20/2022 0.32

Chevron Corp 2.1 
5/16/2021 166764BG4 Moodys-

Aa2 5/10/2017 1,000,000.00 999,500.00 2.100 1,011,380.00 2.113 5/16/2021 0.62

Exxon Mobil Corporation 
2.726 3/1/2023 30231GAR3 Moodys-

Aaa 6/14/2019 985,000.00 1,001,400.25 2.726 1,039,401.55 2.256 3/1/2023 0.62

JPMorgan Chase & Co 
2.7 5/18/2023-23 46625HRL6 Fitch-A+ 3/22/2019 525,000.00 517,970.25 2.700 554,662.50 3.045 3/18/2023 5/18/2023 0.32

Paccar Financial Corp 
2.65 5/10/2022 69371RP83 None 5/10/2019 580,000.00 579,686.80 2.650 603,049.20 2.669 5/10/2022 0.36

State Street Corp 1.95 
5/19/2021 857477AV5 Fitch-AA- 3/22/2019 530,000.00 520,566.00 1.950 536,503.10 2.805 5/19/2021 0.32

Toyota Motor Credit 
Corp 1.8 2/13/2025 89236TGT6 S&P-AA- 5/26/2020 180,000.00 181,758.60 1.800 188,272.80 1.584 2/13/2025 0.11

Toyota Motor Credit 
Corp 1.8 2/13/2025 89236TGT6 S&P-AA- 5/26/2020 250,000.00 252,442.50 1.800 261,490.00 1.584 2/13/2025 0.16

931142DH3 S&P-AA 5/26/2020 965,000.00 1,015,701.10 2.550 1,018,866.30 0.701 1/11/2023 4/11/2023 0.63

Page 3 of 5

31 of 122



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

Wal-Mart Stores Inc 2.55 
4/11/2023-23

Sub Total / Average 
Corporate Issues 8,455,000.00 8,535,886.37 2.493 8,815,517.65 2.208 5.27

LAIF

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 None 4/30/2011 74,868,648.67 74,868,648.67 0.784 74,868,648.67 0.784 N/A N/A 46.23

Sub Total / Average 
LAIF 74,868,648.67 74,868,648.67 0.784 74,868,648.67 0.784 46.23

Municipal

City of Riverside CA 
2.125 6/1/2021 769036BA1 S&P-AA- 6/1/2017 500,000.00 500,000.00 2.125 505,360.00 2.125 6/1/2021 0.31

State of California 2.152 
4/1/2022 13063DAD0 Moodys-

Aa3 4/27/2017 1,000,000.00 1,010,000.00 2.152 1,032,390.00 1.938 4/1/2022 0.62

Victor Valley College 
General Obligation Bond 
2.35

92603PER9 Moodys-
Aa2 12/28/2016 500,000.00 490,150.00 2.350 505,845.00 2.811 8/1/2021 0.30

Sub Total / Average 
Municipal 2,000,000.00 2,000,150.00 2.194 2,043,595.00 2.199 1.24

Treasury

T-Bill 0 6/17/2021 9127963H0 S&P-A1+ 6/24/2020 2,000,000.00 1,996,519.44 0.000 1,997,920.00 0.178 6/17/2021 1.23

T-Note 1.25 7/31/2023 912828S92 Fitch-AAA 4/2/2019 1,035,000.00 990,365.62 1.250 1,068,026.85 2.302 7/31/2023 0.61

T-Note 1.375 6/30/2023 912828S35 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 1,495,000.00 1,431,170.51 1.375 1,546,622.35 2.431 6/30/2023 0.88

T-Note 1.375 9/30/2023 912828T26 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 2,000,000.00 1,909,531.25 1.375 2,075,160.00 2.436 9/30/2023 1.18

T-Note 1.5 3/31/2023 912828Q29 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 175,000.00 168,799.81 1.500 181,125.00 2.428 3/31/2023 0.10

T-Note 1.75 11/30/2021 912828U65 S&P-AA+ 6/16/2020 550,000.00 562,396.49 1.750 560,829.50 0.199 11/30/2021 0.35

T-Note 1.75 7/15/2022 9128287C8 Fitch-AAA 7/31/2019 1,000,000.00 998,789.06 1.750 1,029,920.00 1.792 7/15/2022 0.62

T-Note 1.75 9/30/2022 912828L57 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 835,000.00 816,016.80 1.750 863,114.45 2.426 9/30/2022 0.50

T-Note 1.875 2/28/2022 912828W55 Fitch-AAA 4/2/2019 485,000.00 479,259.57 1.875 497,522.70 2.298 2/28/2022 0.30

T-Note 1.875 8/31/2024 9128282U3 Fitch-AAA 9/3/2019 265,000.00 271,024.61 1.875 282,577.45 1.402 8/31/2024 0.17

T-Note 2 4/30/2024 912828X70 Fitch-AAA 6/7/2019 960,000.00 964,875.00 2.000 1,023,379.20 1.891 4/30/2024 0.60

T-Note 2 6/30/2024 912828XX3 Fitch-AAA 7/3/2019 500,000.00 505,156.25 2.000 534,335.00 1.783 6/30/2024 0.31

T-Note 2.125 1/31/2021 912828B58 Fitch-AAA 10/28/2019 1,625,000.00 1,633,886.72 2.125 1,638,325.00 1.683 1/31/2021 1.01

T-Note 2.125 12/31/2022 912828N30 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 1,170,000.00 1,157,340.24 2.125 1,223,972.10 2.426 12/31/2022 0.71

T-Note 2.125 2/29/2024 912828W48 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 2,000,000.00 1,970,625.00 2.125 2,135,620.00 2.442 2/29/2024 1.22

T-Note 2.125 3/31/2024 912828W71 S&P-AA+ 3/2/2020 1,220,000.00 1,282,525.00 2.125 1,304,546.00 0.844 3/31/2024 0.79

Page 4 of 5

32 of 122



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

T-Note 2.125 6/30/2022 912828XG0 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 710,000.00 703,454.69 2.125 735,652.30 2.418 6/30/2022 0.43

T-Note 2.125 7/31/2024 9128282N9 Fitch-AAA 8/29/2019 445,000.00 460,557.62 2.125 478,410.60 1.388 7/31/2024 0.28

T-Note 2.25 12/31/2023 912828V23 Fitch-AAA 3/20/2019 2,000,000.00 1,982,968.75 2.250 2,138,040.00 2.439 12/31/2023 1.22

T-Note 2.75 11/30/2020 9128285Q9 Fitch-AAA 11/29/2019 120,000.00 121,275.00 2.750 120,772.80 1.677 11/30/2020 0.07

T-Note 2.75 8/15/2021 9128284W7 Fitch-AAA 10/28/2019 1,045,000.00 1,064,757.03 2.750 1,070,717.45 1.678 8/15/2021 0.66

Sub Total / Average 
Treasury 21,635,000.00 21,471,294.46 1.753 22,506,588.75 1.857 13.26

Total / Average 162,014,155.90 161,941,639.11 0.950 163,611,894.39 0.946 100

Page 5 of 5

All investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance with the District’s Investment Policy. The District will meet its expenditure obligations for 
the next six months. Market value sources are the LAIF, CAMP, and BNY Mellon monthly statements. Broker/Dealers utilized per USD Investment Policy and at the discretion of 
investment portfolio advisor. 

Reviewer:

Approver:

33 of 122



Union Sanitary District
Transactions Summary
Board Report - Activity
Group By: Action
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
Begin Date: 07/31/2020, End Date: 08/31/2020

Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Principal Interest/Dividends Coupon Rate
YTM @ 

Cost Settlement Date Total

Buy

Credit Suisse0.59 2/1/2022 22549L6F7 435,000.00 435,000.00 0.00 0.590 0.590 8/7/2020 435,000.00

FHLMC 0.25 8/24/2023 3137EAEV7 520,000.00 519,469.60 0.00 0.250 0.284 8/21/2020 519,469.60

FNMA 0.375 8/25/2025 3135G05X7 555,000.00 552,402.60 0.00 0.375 0.470 8/27/2020 552,402.60

FNMA 0.5 8/14/2025-23 3135G05S8 1,000,000.00 998,400.00 138.89 0.500 0.533 8/24/2020 998,538.89

MUFG Bank LTD/NY 0 2/22/2021 62479LPN9 1,000,000.00 998,837.22 0.00 0.000 0.230 8/24/2020 998,837.22

Sub Total / Average Buy 3,510,000.00 3,504,109.42 138.89 3,504,248.31

Deposit

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 5,861.68 5,861.68 0.00 N/A 0.000 8/31/2020 5,861.68

Union Bank Cash LGIPUNIONBANK 8,995,221.98 8,995,221.98 0.00 N/A 0.000 8/31/2020 8,995,221.98

Sub Total / Average Deposit 9,001,083.66 9,001,083.66 0.00 9,001,083.66

Interest

Amazon.com Inc. 2.4 2/22/2023 023135AW6 0.00 0.00 8,100.00 2.400 0.000 8/24/2020 8,100.00

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 0.00 0.00 5,861.68 N/A 0.000 8/31/2020 5,861.68

Carmax Auto Owner Trust 1.89 12/16/2024 14315XAC2 0.00 0.00 291.38 1.890 0.000 8/17/2020 291.38

FHLB 1.375 2/17/2023 3130AJ7E3 0.00 0.00 5,209.72 1.375 0.000 8/17/2020 5,209.72

FHLMC 1.5 2/12/2025 3137EAEP0 0.00 0.00 7,676.25 1.500 0.000 8/12/2020 7,676.25

Honda Auto Receivables 2020-1 1.61 
4/22/2024-23 43813RAC1 0.00 0.00 409.21 1.610 0.000 8/21/2020 409.21

HSBC 4.875 8/24/2020 4042Q1AE7 0.00 0.00 48,750.00 4.875 0.000 8/24/2020 48,750.00

Ponce De Leon Federal Bank 1.85 
5/28/2021 732333AJ8 0.00 0.00 391.24 1.850 0.000 8/31/2020 391.24

Societe Generale NY 1.8 2/14/2022 83369XDL9 0.00 0.00 4,987.50 1.800 0.000 8/14/2020 4,987.50

Synchrony Bank 2.3 2/24/2022 87165ELT2 0.00 0.00 2,832.72 2.300 0.000 8/24/2020 2,832.72

T-Note 1.875 2/28/2022 912828W55 0.00 0.00 4,546.88 1.875 0.000 8/31/2020 4,546.88

T-Note 1.875 8/31/2024 9128282U3 0.00 0.00 2,484.38 1.875 0.000 8/31/2020 2,484.38

T-Note 2.125 2/29/2024 912828W48 0.00 0.00 21,250.00 2.125 0.000 8/31/2020 21,250.00

Page 1 of 2

34 of 122



Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Principal Interest/Dividends Coupon Rate
YTM @ 

Cost Settlement Date Total

T-Note 2.75 8/15/2021 9128284W7 0.00 0.00 14,368.75 2.750 0.000 8/17/2020 14,368.75

Toyota Auto Receivables 2020-A A3 1.66 
5/15/2024 89232HAC9 0.00 0.00 574.08 1.660 0.000 8/17/2020 574.08

Toyota Motor Credit Corp 1.8 2/13/2025 89236TGT6 0.00 0.00 3,870.00 1.800 0.000 8/13/2020 3,870.00

Victor Valley College General Obligation 
Bond 2.35 92603PER9 0.00 0.00 4,740.00 2.350 0.000 8/3/2020 4,740.00

Sub Total / Average Interest 0.00 0.00 136,343.79 136,343.79

Matured

HSBC 4.875 8/24/2020 4042Q1AE7 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00 4.875 0.000 8/24/2020 2,000,000.00

Sub Total / Average Matured 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00 2,000,000.00

Sell

T-Note 1.375 6/30/2023 912828S35 505,000.00 522,576.37 981.18 1.375 0.000 8/21/2020 523,557.55

T-Note 1.875 8/31/2024 9128282U3 515,000.00 548,736.52 4,723.17 1.875 0.000 8/27/2020 553,459.69

T-Note 2.625 11/15/2020 912828PC8 418,000.00 420,939.06 2,504.59 2.625 0.000 8/7/2020 423,443.65

T-Note 2.75 11/30/2020 9128285Q9 17,000.00 17,144.77 86.86 2.750 0.000 8/7/2020 17,231.63

Sub Total / Average Sell 1,455,000.00 1,509,396.72 8,295.80 1,517,692.52

Withdraw

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00 N/A 0.000 8/17/2020 2,000,000.00

Union Bank Cash LGIPUNIONBANK 4,635,893.29 4,635,893.29 0.00 N/A 0.000 8/30/2020 4,635,893.29

Sub Total / Average Withdraw 6,635,893.29 6,635,893.29 0.00 6,635,893.29

Page 2 of 2

35 of 122



 MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR THE MONTH AUG 2020 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT WORK GROUP SUMMARY 

 
 
Capital Improvement Program 

 
Alvarado Influent Pump Station Improvements Project – Bulkhead was installed to separate the two wet wells 
for coating work. Existing isolation gate in Wet Well No. 2 was removed. Preparation of coating repair for Wet 
Well No. 2 in progress. 
 
Alvarado Influent Valve Box Rehabilitation Project – Control Box No. 1 cleaning work postponed due to the 
shelter-in-place period pursuant to the Alameda County’s health order. 
 
Headworks Screens Replacement Project – Operational testing of new Mechanical Screen No. 1 was completed.  
Installation of the new Mechanical Screen No. 2 was in progress. 
 
Primary Digester No. 2 Rehabilitation Project – Foam insulation work at Primary Digester No. 2 was completed. 
The bearing replacement at the North Effluent Screen was completed. Mechanical and piping installation inside 
Heating and Mixing Building No. 1 was in progress.  
 
Primary Digester No. 7 Project – Installation of steel reinforcement for Digester 7 base slab has been completed.  
Concrete placements to take place in early September. 
 
 

 
 

  

36 of 122



Customer Service 
 

Trouble Calls dispatched from the Front Desk during business hours:  
 

Month Fremont Newark Union City Total 
August-20 9 3 1 13 

July-20 7 2 0 9 
June-20 5 1 4 10 
May-20 2 4 1 7 
April-20 6 1 0 7 

March-20 7 5 1 13 
          

August-19 12 1 1 14 
          
      6-Month Total 59 

         
Sewer Permits Issued 
 

Month Repairs Mains New Laterals Restaurants Other
August-20 16 2 20 1 6

July-20 27 1 76 0 0
June-20 15 4 9 0 0

New Laterals - New residential lateral connections
Other - Non-residential construction (except restaurants)

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

June-20 July-20 August-20

Repairs

Mains

New Laterals

Restaurants

Other

 

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14

Fremont

Newark

Union City

Total

37 of 122



Communication 
• Finalized printing and mailing of Fall 2020 newsletter 
• Social Media posts: 

o “Find the Three P’s” graphic 
o USD’s Essential Collection System Workers 
o USD’s use of biogas and solar to power facilities 
o Certificates of Merit award winners 

• Website updates:  
o Top 10 industrial dischargers 
o Number of connections 
o Updated Organizational chart 
o FY 2021 Budget document and pie chart graphic 
o FY 2020 Spill record graphic 
o Website version of newsletter 

• COVID response: Participated in Tri-City PIO and Regional PIO check-in conference calls to share updates 
 
Environmental Compliance 
 

Pollution Prevention/Stormwater Programs 
 

USD’s Environmental Compliance (EC) team conducts pollution prevention inspections at restaurants, car wash 
businesses, and other commercial facilities.  EC also conducts inspections and enforcement for the City of 
Fremont’s Environmental Services group.  Over 600 Stormwater compliance inspections are conducted every year 
to ensure that commercial facilities, including restaurants and auto shops, comply with City Ordinance 
requirements, and do not discharge pollutants to the creeks and bay.  
 
During the past month, the EC team conducted 85 Stormwater (Urban Runoff), and 68 FOG (restaurant) 
inspections.  During this reporting period, Inspectors identified 13 Stormwater and 3 FOG enforcement actions.  
Seven (7) of the Stormwater enforcements resulted in administrative fines between $100 & 200 for each violation. 
One (1) of the administrative fines was for an illicit discharge.    
 
Urban Runoff Inspections and Enforcements 

August 
2020 

No. of UR 
Inspections VW WL NOV AF LA 

 
 

NOD 
Total 

Enforcements  
No. of Illicit 
Discharge/s 1 

85 0 0 6 7 0 0 13  % Enforcement 15% 
 

FOG Inspections and Enforcements 

August 
2020 

No. of FOG 
Inspections VW WL NOV AF LA 

 
 

NOD Total Enforcements  % Enforcement 4% 
68 3 0 0 0 0 0 3    

 

Enforcements: 
VW –Verbal Warning   WL – Warning Letter   NOV – Notices of Violation 
AF – Administrative Fine  LA – Legal Action   NOD – Notice of Deficiency 
AO – Administrative Order  C&D – Cease & Desist Order  SNC – Significant Non-Compliance   
 
Dental Inspections, School Outreach, and Plant Tours 

# of Dental Inspections # of School Outreach Events  # of Plant Tours 
None None None 

38 of 122



Industrial Pretreatment  
 
The Industrial Pretreatment program has pending permits as shown in the table below.  USD inspectors are working 
with each of these companies to establish permitted industrial discharges. 
 
    Pending Permits 

New Industrial/Groundwater Permits Groundwater/Temporary 
N7K Neuralink GW 0115-  Gordon N. Ball Construction (PENDING 

GROUNDWATER PERMIT) 
Rigetti Computing FMC (groundwater – Pending) 

Facebook Commissary  
Estuary LLC  

Sonova  
Membrane Technology Research  

 
Permits Issued  

Company Name Date Permit Issued 
 RV Stich Construction (Potable Water System 

Permit) 
8/26/2020  

 
    Industrial Permit Closures  

Company Name Date of Closure 
Preston Pipelines (Morton North) Groundwater 

Permit 
Terminated 8/5/2020  

 
Reports (Annual & Semi-Annual Pretreatment Report, Union City Report, etc.) 

Report Name Date Report Completed and Submitted 
FY 2020 Pollution Prevention Report August 28, 2020 

 
Enforcement Action 

IU Name & Nature of 
Business 

Comments City  Parameter 
Violated 

Discharge 
concentration 

(mg/L) 

USD/Fed Limit 
Violated(mg/L) 

Enforce- 
ment 

 

None       

(1) WL   – Warning Letter NOV – Notices of Violation AO – Administrative Order 
 C&D – Cease and Desist Order  SNC – Significant Non-Compliance EM – Enforcement Meeting 
 

Other - Training, Special Meetings, Conferences, IAC (topics) 
Activity Date of Event Attendees 

None   
  

39 of 122



Engineering/Construction 
 
No. of projects under construction: 5 

 Construction Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for  
August 2020 Activities 

1.  Alvarado Influent Pump 
Station Improvements 
Project – Thomas 

$8,890 10/21 15% 42% Bulkhead installed to separate the 
two wet wells for coating work. 
Existing isolation gate in Wet Well 
No. 2 was removed.  Preparation 
for coating repair was in progress. 

2.  Alvarado Influent Valve 
Box Rehabilitation Project 
– Kevin 

$402 09/20 10% 70% Control Box No. 1 cleaning 
postponed during shelter-in-place 
period.   

3.  Headworks Screens 
Replacement Project – 
Thomas 

$1,822 11/20 75% 83% Operational testing of new 
Mechanical Screen No. 1 
completed.  Installation of the 
new Mechanical Screen No. 2 was 
in progress. 

4.  Primary Digester No. 2 
Rehabilitation Project – 
Derek 

$3,058 10/20 69% 88% Foam insulation at Primary 
Digester No. 2 and replacement of 
bearings at North Effluent Screen 
were completed. Mechanical and 
piping installation in Heating and 
Mixing Building No. 1 in progress. 

5.  Primary Digester No. 7 
Project – Curtis 

$23,428 12/21 30% 33% Installation of steel reinforcement 
for Digester 7 base slab has been 
completed.  

  

40 of 122



Design/Study 
 

No. of projects in design/study phase: 16 
 Design/Study Projects Capital 

($1000) 
Scheduled 

Completion 
Completed 

Scope 
Completed 

Time 
Comments for 

August 2020 Activities 
1.  Aeration Blower No. 11 

Project - Derek 
$123 06/20 100% 100% Project advertised for 

bids on August 4th. 
2.  Cathodic Protection System 

Improvements Project - 
Thomas 

$87 07/20 100% 100% Project advertised for 
bids on August 18th. 

3.  Centrifuge Building 
Improvements Project – 
Somporn 

$574 08/20 96% 100% Project will be advertised 
for bids in September.  

4.  Emergency Outfall 
Improvements Project – 
Andrew  

$398 08/20 98% 100% Easement and property  
acquisition in progress. 

5.  Force Main Condition 
Assessment – Andrew 

$121 10/20 60% 93% Pipe testing planned to 
take place during Force 
Main Relocation Phase 2.  

6.  Force Main Corrosion Repairs 
Project Phase 3 – Andrew 

$60 12/20 75% 85% Project construction is 
pending the completion 
of Force Main relocation 
project. 

7.  FY21 Cast Iron/Pipe Lining 
Project – Andrew 

In 
House 

9/20 90% 88% 100% design documents 
in progress. Project will 
be advertised for bids in 
September. 

8.  Gravity Sewer Rehabilitation / 
Replacement Project – Phase 
VII – Andrew 

$176 12/20 92% 85% 100% design submittal 
received. Construction is 
scheduled for 2021. 

9.  Irvington Basin Masterplan 
Update - Andrew 

$378 11/21 13% 27% Notice to Proceed issued 
August 10th.  Began 
providing data request 
items to consultant. Kick-
off Meeting scheduled for 
September 2nd.  

10.  Irvington Basin Reinforced 
Concrete Pipe Rehabilitation 
Project - Andrew 

$105 1/21 10% 20% Kick-off Meeting held on 
August 27th. Consultant 
began video inspection 
review. 

11.  Odor Control Alternatives 
Study – Kevin 

$465 12/20 99% 100% Report will be finalized 
after the pilot testing 
project is completed.   

12.  Odor Control Pilot Study - 
Somporn 

$99 12/21 50% 60% Air sampling for lab 
analysis scheduled for 
September 10th. 

13.  Pump Stations Chemical 
System Improvements Project 
- Thomas 

$100 11/30 15% 28% Kickoff meeting held on 
August 25th.   

41 of 122



 Design/Study Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for 
August 2020 Activities 

14.  Standby Power Generation 
System Upgrade Project – 
Kevin 

$2,281 01/21 79% 79% Review of the 90% design 
submittal completed.   
Equipment pre-selection 
bid recommendation to 
the Board  for the 
September 14th meeting. 

15.  WAS Thickener Replacement 
Project – Derek 

$807 06/20 0% 5% Final Design kickoff 
meeting held on August 
27th. 

16.  Wet Weather Flow 
Management – Calcium 
Thiosulfate Chemical Feed 
System – Kevin/Blake 

$70 09/20 90% 90% Review of the 90% design 
submittal completed.  
100% bid documents in 
progress. 

 

42 of 122



     

COLLECTION SERVICES  
ACTIVITIES REPORT 

AUGUST 2020 
 

    
Progress/Accomplishments   

• No stoppages or spills in August. 

• Completed 5.9 miles of sewer main cleaning in August. 

• Completed 10.1 miles of sewer main inspection in August. 

• Responded to 19 service request calls in August. 

• Completed a total of 14 sewer main repairs in August. 
 
Trainings 
• CCTV & Vactor Job Competency Requirement (New EE) 
• Budget Starpoint  
• Manhole Assessment Mobile App Training 

 
Reported Bay Area Spills 

August 31, 2019 to August 31, 2020 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

  

43 of 122



August 31, 2019 to August 31, 2020 Spills Per 100 Miles of Pipe 
Union Sanitary District, State & Regional Average 

 
 

 

44 of 122



Cleaning Actual Footages/Costs

Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 FY21 Q1 FY21 YTD FY20 FY21 % Cmpl
Description Footage Footage Footage Footage Footage Footage YE Goal to Plan

84 Month Hydro-jet Clean 0 79,422 23,368 102,790 102,790 601,992 516,751 19.9%

Selective Line Cleaning 32,126 5,921 6,144 12,065 12,065 193,383 125,737 9.6%

Special Condition Clean (NIC in total) 5,386 2,374 477 2,851 2,851 14,274 23,315 12.2%

Root Control/Chemical Cln 24,697 25,483 1,356 26,839 26,839 294,525 154,795 17.3%

Cast Iron Project  3,014 0 0 0 0 3,014 3,839 0.0%

Other Special Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%

Spills/Stoppages 0 525 0 525 525 0 0 0.0%
            

Totals 59,837   111,351 30,868 142,219 142,219 1,107,188 801,122 17.8%

Televising Actual Footages/Costs

Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 FY21 Q1 FY21 YTD FY20 FY21 % Cmpl
Description Footage Footage Footage Footage Footage Footage YE Goal to Plan

84 Month TV Inspection 29,508 42,944 41,030 83,974 83,974 437,518 444,728 18.9%

Visual/Condition, Pre/Post Cnst TV (NIC in 0 398 0 398 398 11,988 20,320 2.0%

Visual Manhole Inspection Count 0 12 9 21 21

New Development, CIP, Misc. (NIC in tota 362 1,725 1,457 3,182 3,182 25,504 36,120 8.8%

QA/QC Line Condition 0 0 0 0 0 27,829 18,861 0.0%

QA/QC Root Control 0 0 10,697 10,697 10,697 13,830 23,219 46.1%

Totals 29,508   42,944 51,727 94,671 94,671 516,669 486,808 19.4%

FY21 PLAN

FY21 PLAN

August-20 Clean Cost/Ft = $1.26

August-20 TV Cost/Ft = $2.32

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

FY21 Cumulative Cleaning

FY21  Cu m P ln FY21  Cu m Act

FY20  Cu m P ln FY20  Cu m Act

Fe
et

 In
Th

ou
sa

nd
s

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

FY21 Cumulative Televising

FY21 Cum Pln FY21 Cum Act

FY20 Cum Pln FY20 Cum Act

Fe
et

 In
Th

ou
sa

nd
s

Performance Measures 

 45 of 122



 
Other Collection Services Status Data: 

 

Support Team Work Order Status: 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C/S Maintenance Status: 
 
  

46 of 122







 Fabrication and installation of new ferrous injection point for East FM
 Installation of new HDPE hypo to RAS line
 Cogen 1 2k service
 Primary Clairifier 6 drive gear repair
 Centrifuge 1 inclince conveyor gearbox repair

Future Planning
 Installation of diaphram ARV on building 66
 Installation of new poly skid at GBT
 OCB Tank 3 coating
 Cogen 2 Intercooler replacement
 Plant shutdown for Emergency Outfall temp power, Secondary Effluent piping repair, Blower 7 IQ 

1000 II relay replacement 

Performance Measurements

Fabrication, Maintenance and Construction
Activities Report

August 2020

Progress/Accomplishments
Completed 97.51% of preventive maintenance activities for the month of August
Completed 93 corrective maintenance work orders for the month of August

0

5

10

15

20

Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s

Priority A Repairs Required

Total Target

1
47 of 122



0

25

50

75

100

125

150

175
N

o.
  o

f  
W

O
s

Number of Work Orders Initiated & Completed Within Month

Initiated
Completed

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s

Number of Work Orders over 90 Days

# WO's Target

2
48 of 122



l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

Future Planning
l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

Other
l

Attend ETSU 30% Design Workshop and debrief meetings

Attended the BACWA Air and Permits Committee meetings

Complete initial training of the new Plant Operator III Trainee

Provide plant information for the NAWCA financial survey and CSRMA Insurance update

Met with RMC and reviewed and submitted comments on the Old Alameda Creek Permit 

Tentative Order (NPDES)

Attended ETSU Operational Modes and ETSU Instrumentation Workshops

Attended WEF Webinar on anaerobic digester basics

Followed up with ENGIE Services U.S. to discuss two potential solar project alternatives near the 

Newark Pump Station

Met with Utility Cost Management to discuss their proposal to opt into and out of the new PG&E 

tarrifs to reduce costs on electricity before new rates become compulsory 

Cogen system produced 64% of power consumed for the month of August

Complete functional and operational testing of Headworks Bar Screen 2

Successfully complete Digester 6 and Secondary Digester Gas bypass for Digester 7 gas piping tie-

ins

Provide information for the BAAQMD information update for Newark Pump Station

Complete the implementation of LIMS CIWQS reporting and address punchlist items

Procure contract laboratory services for the Environmental Compliance program requirements

Treatment & Disposal

Activities Report

August 2020

Progress/Accomplishments

Completed 96% preventive maintenance activities for the month of August

Worked with programmer and CIP to delevop an operational plan for running the Alvarado 

Influent Pump Station in a one wet well configuration

Maintained 100% compliance with NPDES permits

Completed staff field training for the Odor Control Pilot Project Study and began associated 

sampling for data analysis

Procured interim contract laboratory services for the Environmental Compliance team after the 

existing contract laboratory failed to meet requirements

Began a laboratory bench scale pilot study to determine whether the Hayward Marsh nitrification 

process could be started without seeding

Met with StopWaste to determine if credits for SB 1383 diversions could be generated by USD

Began initial training of the new Plant Operator III Trainee

Complete laboratory bench scale pilot study to determine whether the Hayward Marsh 

nitrification process could be started up without seeding

Successfully execute a Plant Hydraulic and Electric Shutdown

Participated in the Calcium Thiosulfate 90% Design Workshop

49 of 122



Performance Measurements

18

20

22

24

26

28

30

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

M
G

D

m
g

/l

Lab Results and Effluent Flow

EFF SS CBOD EFF SS Limit CBOD Limit Flow MGD

10%

55%

77% 79% 73%

53%
39%

73%
55%

74%
65%

73%
64%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

kW
h

 /
1

0
0

0
0

P
er

ce
n

t 
P

ro
d

u
ce

d
Cogen Power Produced

Percent Produced kWh /10000

Parameter EBDA Limit Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20

Copper, µg/l 78 4.6 5.2 6.2

Mercury, µg/l 0.066 0.0012 0.0016
Not Yet 

Available 1

Cyanide, µg/l 42 E 1.2 E 0.95 E 1.8

Ammonia- N, mg/L (Range) 130 40.4 - 45.0 40 - 46.9 38 - 43.0

Fecal Coliform, MPN/100ml (Range)

• 5-Day Geometric Mean 500 14 - 50 37 - 59 28 - 44

• 11-Sample 90th Percentile 1100 25 - 75 75 - 96 75 - 96

Enterococci

• Monthly Geometric Mean 240 15.2 13.2 10.0

1 Re-sampled 8/31/20 due to likely contamination of 8/5 sample

USD's Final Effluent Monthly Monitoring Results

E = Estimated value, concentration outside calibration range.  For SIP, E = DNQ, estimated 

concentration.

50 of 122



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
SEPTEMBER 28, 2020 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 
TITLE: Award the Construction Contract of the Aeration Blower No. 11 Project to 

Western Water Constructors, Inc. (This is a Motion Item) 
 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Technical Services Work Group Manager 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Team Coach 

Derek Chiu, Assistant Engineer 
 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board waive a minor irregularity in the apparent low bid and award the 
construction contract, including Bid Alternate A, for the Aeration Blower No. 11 Project 
(Project) to Western Water Constructors, Inc. (Western) in the amount of $1,652,000.  Funds 
for the project have been budgeted in the Capacity Fund. 
 
 
Discussion 
The Project was advertised for bids on August 4, 2020.  Four bids were received on September 
15, 2020 with the results shown in the table below.  Please refer to the attached Table 1 for a 
detailed breakdown of the bids. 
 

Contractor Total Contract Price 
Western Water Constructors, Inc. 

Santa Rosa, CA 
$1,652,000 

TNT Industrial Contractors, Inc. 
Sacramento, CA 

$1,823,694 

Auburn Constructors, LLC 
Sacramento, CA 

$2,156,300 

51 of 122



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of September 28, 2020 
Page 2  
 

Contractor Total Contract Price 
Kiewit Infrastructure West Co. 

Fairfield, CA 
$2,307,000 

 
The Engineer’s Estimate for the Project’s Total Contract Price is $3,000,000, which includes Bid 
Alternate A for builder’s risk insurance.  Staff and the design consultant believe the bids were 
lower due to a more competitive bidding environment.  The Engineer’s Estimate included 
higher contingencies because of cost uncertainties for the structural concrete repairs, roofing 
membrane replacement, and seismic retrofit of the precast concrete roof panels. 
 
Staff reviewed the apparent low bid submitted by Western and found a minor irregularity with 
their Site Visit Affidavit.  Western had mistakenly indicated that they had visited the Project site 
instead of indicating that they had declined to visit the site.  Since a site visit was not 
mandatory but available if requested by the bidders, District’s legal counsel determined that it 
can be waived by the District. 
 
No bid protests were received by the District.  Western has confirmed that they will construct 
the Project as bid.  Western is a General Engineering Class A licensed contractor who has 
successfully constructed recent wastewater projects for the City of Manteca, City of Woodland, 
and SFPUC.  Staff contacted two of these agencies and received positive comments on 
Western’s performance on the projects. 
 
The contractor has 327 calendar days to complete project construction, which puts the 
estimated substantial completion in October 2021.  Staff will hire a consultant to provide 
construction management and inspection services for the Project. 
 
 
Background 
The Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant meets the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System permit requirements for secondary treatment by using conventional activated sludge as 
its biological liquid treatment process.  This plant process consumes the most energy by using 
large aeration blowers to continuously deliver air to the activated sludge in the aeration basins.  
The existing multistage centrifugal blowers were installed during the 1993 Plant Upgrade 
Project and are nearing the end of their useful lives. 
 
In 2016, the District completed the High Speed Aeration Blower Project to install a new high-
speed aeration blower, Blower No. 12, to improve the energy efficiency of the process and to 
evaluate it as a replacement option for the existing multistage centrifugal blowers.  In 2018, the 
District evaluated the performance of Blower No. 12 and determined that it was operating 
more efficiently than the existing multistage centrifugal blowers.  Staff was satisfied with its 
performance and decided to install another high-speed blower in the East Aeration Blower 
Building to provide additional blower capacity and to increase aeration system reliability. 

52 of 122



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of September 28, 2020 
Page 3  
 
 
Project Scope 
Carollo Engineers completed the Project’s design in July 2020.  The Project’s scope includes: 

• Installation of a second high-speed blower, Blower No. 11, in the East Aeration Blower 
Building. 

• Modifications to the aeration piping system, electrical system, and other associated 
systems to facilitate the addition of the new high-speed blower. 

• Improvements to the building’s ventilation system to improve the performance of the 
two high-speed blowers. 

• Replacement of the building’s roofing membrane system. 
• Seismic retrofit to the building’s precast concrete panels. 
• Miscellaneous structural concrete repairs to the building. 

Equipment Standardization and Pre-negotiation 
During design, staff identified that the new high-speed blower be provided by the same 
manufacturer of the existing Blower No. 12 in lieu of being open to bid by other manufacturers.  
The District has been operating Blower No. 12, manufactured by APG-Neuros, since 2016 with 
very few operational and maintenance issues.  There has been no unscheduled repair to the 
equipment due to manufacturer defects within the past three years. 
 
Staff evaluated the new blower using the procedures outlined in the District’s Policy No. 2760 – 
Standardized Equipment Policy and determined the equipment meets the “Match Existing 
Equipment” selection criteria to be standardized or sole sourced. 
 
Standardizing the blower to be manufactured by APG-Neuros in the Project to match the 
existing Blower No. 12 will minimize stocking of spare parts and materials, facilitate efficient 
replacement of parts, provide consistent operation and maintenance of the equipment, and 
reduce the complexity of integrating the controls of the new and existing high-speed blowers. 
 
To ensure that the cost of the standardized equipment is reasonable, staff pre-negotiated with 
APG-Neuros the cost of the new blower, new master control panel, and programming and 
commissioning services.  The contractor will be required to procure the equipment and services 
from APG-Neuros, per the terms and conditions of the pre-negotiated proposal. 
 
 
Previous Board Action 
November 11, 2019, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute an agreement and 
Task Order No. 1 with Carollo in the amount of $122,849 for final design services for the 
Project. 
 

53 of 122



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of September 28, 2020 
Page 4  
 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/DC;mb 
 
Attachments: Figures 1 – Site Plan 
 Figures 2 through 7 – Photos of Existing Building and Equipment 

Table 1 – Bid Tabulation Sheet 
Agreement 

 

54 of 122



 

 

FIGURE 1 – Site Map 
  

55 of 122



 

 

FIGURE 2 – Existing Equipment in East Aeration Blower Building 
  

 
 

 

56 of 122



 

 

FIGURE 3 – Location of New Aeration Blower in the East Aeration Blower Building 
  

 
 

 
 

57 of 122



 

 
 

FIGURE 4 – Ventilation Improvements – North End of Building 
  

 

 

58 of 122



 

 

 

FIGURE 5 – Ventilation Improvements – South End of Building 
  

 

 

59 of 122



 

 
 

FIGURE 6 – Exterior of the East Aeration Blower Building 
  

 

 

60 of 122



 

 

FIGURE 7 – East Aeration Blower Building Roofing System to be Replaced 

61 of 122



Aeration Blower No. 11 Project

Table 1 ‐ Bid Tabulation Sheet

Aeration Blower No. 11 Project, Project No. 900-528
Bid Tabulation
Bid Opening: 11:30 am, September 15, 2020
Engineer's Estimate:  $3,000,000 (Including Bid Alternate A)

Engineer's 
Estimate

Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

1
Completion of all Work included as part of Contract 

Documents for Project No. 900-528, except as specified 
under Bid Items 2-7 and the bid alternates.

1 LS  $    2,308,000  LS 1,013,000$      LS 1,160,060$      LS 1,514,200$      LS 1,670,729$     

2 APG-Neuros Turbo Blower System 1 LS  $       586,000  LS 586,000$         LS 586,000$         LS 586,000$         LS 586,000$        

3 Structural concrete repair, Type 1 Repair 20 SF  $           2,000  $          150 3,000$             $          233 4,660$             $          175 3,500$             $          110 2,200$            

4 Structural concrete repair, Type 2 Repair 10 SF  $           2,000  $          180 1,800$             $          279 2,790$             $          225 2,250$             $            82 820$               

5 Structural concrete repair, Type 3 Repair 10 SF  $           2,000  $          285 2,850$             $          442 4,420$             $          325 3,250$             $          525 5,250$            

6 Structural concrete repair: Epoxy Injection 500 LF  $         75,000  $            75 37,500$           $          116 58,000$           $            90 45,000$           $            72 36,000$          

7
Cost for providing all shoring and bracing on all Bid 

Items above including but not limited to that as required 
by Sections 6700-6708 of the Labor Code.

1 LS  INCL.  LS 850$                LS 2$                    LS 100$                LS 1$                   

 $       2,975,000  $    1,645,000  $    1,815,932  $    2,154,300  $    2,301,000 

Bid 
Alternate A

Builder's Risk Insurance 1 LS  $         25,000 LS 7,000$            LS 7,762$            LS 2,000$            LS 6,000$            

 $       3,000,000 1,652,000$     1,823,694$     2,156,300$     2,307,000$     Basis of Award - Total Base Bid Plus Bid Alternate A

Western Water 
Constructors, Inc.

Santa Rosa, CA

Kiewit Infrastructure West 
Co.

Fairfield, CA

Total Base Bid

Auburn Constructors, LLC
Sacramento, CA

Item Description Quantity Unit

TNT Industrial 
Contractors, Inc.
Sacramento, CA

62 of 122



Page 1 of 9 

AGREEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 
 
 

Aeration Blower No. 11 Project 
 

Project No. 900-528 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and concluded, in duplicate, this        day of                              , 
2020, between the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT (“District”), Union City, California,  
and WESTERN WATER CONSTRUCTORS, INC. ("Contractor"), License No. 188068. 
 
 W I T N E S S E T H : 
 
1. That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter mentioned, to 
be made and performed by the District, and under the conditions expressed in the two bonds, 
bearing even date with these presents, and hereunto annexed, the Contractor agrees with the 
District, at his/her own proper cost and expense, to do all the work and furnish all the materials 
necessary to construct and complete in good workmanlike and substantial manner the project 
entitled: Aeration Blower No. 11 Project (Project No. 900-528) in strict conformity with the 
plans and specifications prepared therefor, which said plans and specifications are hereby 
specially referred to and by said reference made a part hereof. 
 
2. Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements of the parties 
herein contained and to be performed, the Contractor hereby agrees to complete the work in 
accordance with the terms and conditions stipulated in the Contract Documents for the sum of 
one million six hundred and fifty-two thousand dollars ($1,652,000) (the “Contract Price”) 
computed in accordance with Contractor’s accepted proposal dated September 1, 2020, which 
accepted proposal is incorporated herein by reference thereto as if herein fully set forth. This 
sum includes the following bid alternate(s) that have been accepted by the District and are 
hereby incorporated in the Agreement: Bid Alternate A. Compensation shall be based upon the 
lump sum bid items plus the unit prices stated in the Bid Schedule times the actual quantities or 
units of work and materials performed or furnished. The further terms, conditions, and 
covenants of this Agreement are set forth in the Contract Documents, each of which is by this 
reference made a part hereof. Payments are to be made to the Contractor in accordance with 
the provisions of the Contract Documents and the Technical Specifications in legally executed 
and regularly issued warrants of the District, drawn on the appropriate fund or funds as required 
by law and order of the District thereof. 
 
3. The District hereby promises and agrees with the said Contractor to employ, and does 
hereby employ, the said Contractor to provide the materials and to do the work according to the 
terms and conditions herein contained and referred to, for the Contract Price, and hereby 
contracts to pay the same at the time, in the manner and upon the conditions set forth in the 
Contract Documents; and the said parties for themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns, do hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants herein 
contained. 
 

63 of 122



 
Agreement for the Construction of the 
Aeration Blower No. 11 Project 

Page 2 of 9 

4. The Contractor and any subcontractor performing or contracting any work shall comply 
with all applicable provisions of the California Labor Code for all workers, laborers and 
mechanics of all crafts, classifications or types, including, but necessarily limited to the 
following: 
 

(a) The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of Section 1810 to 
1815, inclusive, of the California Labor Code relating to working hours. The Contractor 
shall, as a penalty to the District, forfeit the sum of twenty-five dollars ($25) for each 
worker employed in the execution of the Contract by the Contractor or by any 
subcontractor for each calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted to 
work more than eight (8) hours in any one calendar day and forty (40) hours in any one 
calendar week, unless such worker receives compensation for all hours worked in 
excess of eight (8) hours at not less than 1-1/2 times the basic rate of pay. 

 
(b) Pursuant to the provision of California Labor Code, Sections 1770 et. seq., 
the Contractor and any subcontractor under him shall pay not less than the prevailing 
rate of per diem wages as determined by the Director of the California Department of 
Industrial Relations. Pursuant to the provisions of California Labor Code Section 1773.2, 
the Contractor is hereby advised that copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages 
and a general prevailing rate for holidays, Saturdays and Sundays and overtime work in 
the locality in which the work is to be performed for each craft, classification, or type of 
worker required to execute the Contract, are on file in the office of the District, which 
copies shall be made available to any interested party on request. The Contractor shall 
post a copy of said prevailing rate of per diem wages at each job site. 

 
(c) As required by Section 1773.1 of the California Labor Code, the Contractor 
shall pay travel and subsistence payments to each worker needed to execute the work, 
as such travel and subsistence payments are defined in the applicable collective 
bargaining agreements filed in accordance with this Section. 

 
(d) To establish such travel and subsistence payments, the representative of 
any craft, classification, or type of workman needed to execute the contracts shall file 
with the Department of Industrial Relations fully executed copies of collective bargaining 
agreements for the particular craft, classification or type of work involved. Such 
agreements shall be filed within 10 days after their execution and thereafter shall 
establish such travel and subsistence payments whenever filed 30 days prior to the call 
for bids. 

 
(e) The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Section 1775 of the 
California Labor Code and shall, as a penalty to the District, forfeit not more than 
two hundred dollars ($200) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker 
paid less than the prevailing rate of per diem wages for each craft, classification, or type 
of worker needed to execute the contract. The Contractor shall pay each worker an 
amount equal to the difference between the prevailing wage rates and the amount paid 
worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which a worker was paid less than 
the prevailing wage rate. 

 
(f) As required under the provisions of Section 1776 of the California Labor 
Code, Contractor and each subcontractor shall keep an accurate payroll record, showing 
the name, address, social security number, work classification, and straight time and 

64 of 122



 
Agreement for the Construction of the 
Aeration Blower No. 11 Project 

Page 3 of 9 

overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each 
journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by him or her in 
connection with the public work. Said payroll shall be certified and shall be available for 
inspection at all reasonable hours at the principal office of the Contractor on the 
following basis: 

 
(1) A certified copy of an employee's payroll record shall be made 
available for inspection or furnished to the employee or his or her authorized 
representative on request. 

 
(2) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in Paragraph 4(f), 
herein, shall be made available for inspection or furnished upon request to the 
District, the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, and the Division of 
Apprenticeship Standards of the Department of Industrial Relations. 

 
(3) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in Paragraph 4(f), 
herein, shall be made available upon request by the public for inspection or for 
copies thereof; provided, however, that a request by the public shall be made 
through the District, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of 
Labor Standards Enforcement. If the requested payroll records have not been 
provided pursuant to subparagraph 4(e) herein, the requesting party shall, prior 
to being provided the records, reimburse the costs of preparation by the 
Contractor, subcontractors, and the entity through which the request was made. 
The public shall not be given access to the records at the principal offices of the 
Contractor. 

 
The certified payroll records shall be on forms provided by the Division of Labor 
Standards Enforcement or shall contain the same information as the forms 
provided by the division. 
 
Certified payroll records shall be submitted electronically as required under 
California Labor Code Section 1776 to the Labor Commissioner pursuant to 
California Code of Regulations Chapter 8, Section 16404. 

 
Each Contractor shall file a certified copy of the records, enumerated in 
Paragraph 4(f) with the entity that requested the records within 10 days after 
receipt of a written request. Any copy of records made available for inspection 
as copies and furnished upon request to the public or any public agency by the 
District, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor 
Standards Enforcement shall be marked or obliterated in such a manner as to 
prevent disclosure of an individual's name, address, and social security 
number. The name and address of the Contractor awarded the contract or 
performing the contract shall not be marked or obliterated. The Contractor shall 
inform the District of the location of the records enumerated under 
Paragraph 4(f) including the street address, city and county, and shall, within 
5 working days, provide a notice of change of location and address. The 
Contractor shall have 10 days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of 
written notice specifying in what respects the Contractor must comply with this 
Paragraph 4(f). In the event that the Contractor fails to comply within the 10-day 
period, he or she shall, as a penalty to the state or the District, forfeit 

65 of 122



 
Agreement for the Construction of the 
Aeration Blower No. 11 Project 

Page 4 of 9 

one hundred dollars ($100) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each 
worker, until strict compliance is effectuated. Upon the request of the Division of 
Apprenticeship Standards or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, 
these penalties shall be withheld from progress payments then due. 
Responsibility for compliance with Paragraph 4(f) lies with the Contractor. 

 
(g) The Contractor and any subcontractors shall, when they employ any person in 
any apprenticeable craft or trade, apply to the joint apprenticeship committee 
administering the apprenticeship standards of the craft or trade in the area of the 
construction site for a certificate approving the Contractor or subcontractor under the 
apprenticeship standards for the employment and training of apprentices in the area or 
industry affected; and shall comply with all other requirements of Section 1777.5 of the 
California Labor Code. The responsibility of compliance with California Labor Code 
Section 1777.5 during the performance of this contract rests with the Contractor. 
Pursuant to California Labor Code Section 1777.7, in the event the Contractor willfully 
fails to comply with the provisions of California Labor Code Section 1777.5, the 
Contractor shall be denied the right to bid on any public works contract for up to 
three (3) years from the date noncompliance is determined and be assessed civil 
penalties. 

 
(h) In accordance with the provisions of Article 5, Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 
(commencing with Section 1860), and Chapter 4, Part 1, Division 4 (commencing with 
Section 3700) of the California Labor Code, the Contractor is required to secure the 
payment of compensation to its employees and for that purpose obtain and keep in 
effect adequate Workers' Compensation Insurance. If the Contractor, in the sole 
discretion of the District satisfies the District of the responsibility and capacity under the 
applicable Workers' Compensation Laws, if any, to act as self-insurer, the Contractor 
may so act, and in such case, the insurance required by this paragraph need not be 
provided. 

 
The Contractor is advised of the provisions of Section 3700 of the California Labor 
Code, which requires every employer to be insured against liability for Workers' 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that 
Code and shall comply with such provisions and have Employer’s Liability limits of 
$1,000,000 per accident before commencing the performance of the work of this 
Contract. 

 
The Notice to Proceed with the Work under this Contract will not be issued, and the 
Contractor shall not commence work, until the Contractor submits written evidence that it 
has obtained full Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage for all persons whom it 
employs or may employ in carrying out the work under this Contract. This insurance 
shall be in accordance with the requirements of the most current and applicable state 
Workers' Compensation Insurance Laws. In accordance with the provisions of Section 
1861 of the California Labor Code, the Contractor in signing this agreement certifies to 
the District as true the following statement: "I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 
of the Labor Code which requires every employer to be insured against liability for 
Workers' Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions 
of that Code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance 
of the work of this contract." 

 

66 of 122



 
Agreement for the Construction of the 
Aeration Blower No. 11 Project 

Page 5 of 9 

A subcontractor is not allowed to commence work on the project until verification of 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance coverage has been obtained and verified by the 
Contractor and submitted to the Construction Manager for the District’s review and 
records. 

 
(i) In accordance with the provisions of Section 1727 of the California Labor Code, 
the District, before making payment to the Contractor of money due under a contract for 
public works, shall withhold and retain therefrom all wages and penalties which have 
been forfeited pursuant to any stipulation in the contract, and the terms of Chapter 1, 
Part 7, Division 2 of the California Labor Code (commencing with Section 1720). But no 
sum shall be withheld, retained or forfeited, except from the final payment, without a full 
investigation by either the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement or by the District. 

 
5. It is further expressly agreed by and between the parties hereto that should there be any 
conflict between the terms of this Agreement the instrument and the bid proposal of said 
Contractor, then this Agreement instrument shall control, and nothing herein contained shall be 
considered as an acceptance of the said terms of said proposal conflicting herewith. 
 
6. The Contractor agrees to provide and maintain insurance coverage, and to indemnify 
and save harmless the parties named and in the manner set forth in Section 00800-2.0, 
LIABILITY AND INSURANCE, of the Supplementary General Conditions of the Specifications. 
 
The duty of Contractor to indemnify and save harmless, as set forth herein, shall include a duty 
to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code; provided, however, that 
nothing herein shall be construed to require Contractor to indemnify against any responsibility or 
liability in contravention of Section 2782 of the California Civil Code. 
 
7. The Contractor shall diligently prosecute the work so that it shall be substantially 
completed within the time specified in Section 00800-1.1, Time Allowed for Completion. 
 
8. Except as otherwise may be provided herein, Contractor hereby expressly guarantees 
for one (1) full year from the date of the substantial completion of the work under this agreement 
and acceptance thereof by the District, to repair or replace any part of the work performed 
hereunder which constitutes a defect resulting from the use of inferior or defective materials, 
equipment or workmanship. If, within said period, any repairs or replacements in connection 
with the work are, in the opinion of the District, rendered necessary as the result of the use of 
inferior or defective materials, equipment or workmanship, Contractor agrees, upon receipt of 
notice from District, and without expense to District, to promptly repair or replace such material 
or workmanship and/or correct any and all defects therein. If Contractor, after such notice, fails 
to proceed promptly to comply with the terms of this guarantee, District may perform the work 
necessary to effectuate such correction and recover the cost thereof from the Contractor and/or 
its sureties. 
 
In special circumstances where a particular item of work or equipment is placed in continuous 
service before substantial completion of the Work, the correction period for that item may start 
to run from an earlier date. This date shall be agreed upon in writing by the Contractor and 
District on or before the item is placed in continuous service. 
 
Any and all other special guarantees which may be applicable to definite parts of the work under 
this agreement shall be considered as an additional guarantee and shall not reduce or limit the 

67 of 122



 
Agreement for the Construction of the 
Aeration Blower No. 11 Project 

Page 6 of 9 

guarantee as provided by Contractor pursuant to this paragraph during the first year of the life of 
such guarantee. 
 
9. The Contractor shall provide, on the execution of this Agreement, a good and sufficient 
corporate surety bond in the penal sum of one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price, 
which bond shall be on the form provided by the District in Section 00610, FORM OF 
PERFORMANCE BOND, and be conditioned upon the faithful performance of all work required 
to be performed by the Contractor under this Agreement. Said bond shall be liable for any and 
all penalties and obligations which may be incurred by Contractor under this Agreement. The 
corporate surety bond shall be issued by a corporate surety that possesses a minimum rating 
from A. M. Best Company of A:VII and that is approved by the District. The corporate surety 
shall be authorized to conduct business in California. At its discretion, the District may request 
that a certified copy of the certificate of authority of the insurer issued by the Insurance 
Commissioner of the State of California be submitted by the surety to the District. At its 
discretion, the District may also require the insurer to provide copies of its most recent annual 
statement and quarterly statement filed with the Department of Insurance pursuant to Article 10 
(commencing with Section 900) of Chapter 1 of Part 2 of Division 1 of the Insurance Code. 
 
10. In addition to the bond required under Paragraph 9, hereof, Contractor shall furnish a 
good and sufficient corporate surety bond in the penal sum of one hundred percent (100%) of 
the Contract Price, which bond shall be on the form provided by the District in Section 00620, 
PAYMENT BOND, and conform strictly with the provisions of Sections 9550 et seq. of the Civil 
Code, and all amendments thereto. The corporate surety bond shall be issued by a corporate 
surety that possesses a minimum rating from A. M. Best Company of A:VII and that is approved 
by the District. The corporate surety shall be authorized to conduct business in California. At its 
discretion, the District may request that a certified copy of the certificate of authority of the 
insurer issued by the Insurance Commissioner of the State of California be submitted by the 
surety to the District. At its discretion, the District may also require the insurer to provide copies 
of its most recent annual statement and quarterly statement filed with the Department of 
Insurance pursuant to Article 10 (commencing with Section 900) of Chapter 1 of Part 2 of 
Division 1 of the Insurance Code. 
 
11. The Contractor may substitute securities for the amounts retained by the District to 
ensure performance of the work in accordance with the provisions of Section 22300 of the 
Public Contract Code.   
 
12. The Contractor shall be provided the time period specified in Section 01340-2.0, 
MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT SUBSTITUTIONS, for submission of data substantiating a 
request for a substitution of an “or equal" item. 
 
13. As required by Section 6705 of the California Labor Code and in addition thereto, 
whenever work under the Contract involves the excavation of any trench or trenches five feet or 
more in depth, the Contractor shall submit in advance of excavations, a detailed plan showing 
the design of shoring, bracing, sloping, or other provisions to be made for worker protection 
from the hazard of caving ground during the excavation of such trench or trenches. If such plan 
varies from the shoring system standards established by the Construction Safety Orders of the 
Division of Industrial Safety in Title 8, Subchapter 4, Article 6, California Code of Regulations, 
the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer employed by the 
Contractor, and all costs therefore shall be included in the price named in the Contract for 
completion of the work as set forth in the Contract Documents. Nothing in this Section shall be 

68 of 122



 
Agreement for the Construction of the 
Aeration Blower No. 11 Project 

Page 7 of 9 

deemed to allow the use of a shoring, sloping, or other protective system less effective than that 
required by the Construction Safety Orders. Nothing in this Section shall be construed to 
impose tort liability on the District, the Design Consultant, Construction Manager or any of their 
agents, consultants, or employees. The District’s review of the Contractor’s excavation plan is 
only for general conformance to the California Construction Safety Orders. 
 
Prior to commencing any excavation, the Contractor shall designate in writing to the 
Construction Manager the “competent person(s)” with the authority and responsibilities 
designated in the Construction Safety Orders. 
 
14. In accordance with Section 7104 of the Public Contract Code, whenever any work 
involves digging trenches or other excavations that extend deeper than four feet below the 
surface, the provisions of Section 00700-7.2, Differing Site Conditions, shall apply. 
 
15. In accordance with Section 7103.5 of the Public Contract Code, the Contractor and 
subcontractors shall conform to the following requirements. In entering into a public works 
contract or a subcontract to supply goods, services, or materials pursuant to a public works 
contract, the Contractor or subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the District all rights, 
title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act 
(15 U.S.C. Section 15) or under the Cartwright Act [Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 
16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code], arising from purchases of 
goods, materials or services pursuant to this Contract or the subcontract. Such assignment shall 
be made and become effective at the time the District tenders final payment to the Contractor, 
without further acknowledgment by the parties. 
 
16. In accordance with Section 4552 of the Government Code, the Contractor shall conform 
to the following requirements. In submitting a bid to the District, the Contractor offers and 
agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will assign to the District all rights, title, and interest in and to 
all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Section 15) or 
under the Cartwright Act [Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of 
the Business and Professions Code], arising from purchase of goods, materials, or services by 
the Contractor for sale to the District pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall be made and 
become effective at the time the District tenders final payment to the Contractor. 
 
17. Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 7100, the acceptance by the Contractor of an 
undisputed payment made under the terms of the Contract shall operate as, and shall be, a 
release to the District, and their duly authorized agents, from all claim of and/or liability to the 
Contractor arising by virtue of the contract related to those amounts. Disputed contract claims in 
stated amounts may be specifically excluded by the Contractor from the operation of the 
release. 
 
18. In accordance with California Business and Professions Code Section 7030, the 
Contractor is required by law to be licensed and regulated by the Contractors’ State License 
Board which has jurisdiction to investigate complaints against contractors if a complaint 
regarding a patent act or omission is filed within four years of the date of the alleged violation. A 
complaint regarding a latent act or omission pertaining to structural defects must be filed within 
10 years of the date of the alleged violation. Any questions concerning the Contractor may be 
referred to the Registrar, Contractors’ State License Board, P.O. Box 26000, Sacramento, 
California 95826. 
 

69 of 122



 
Agreement for the Construction of the 
Aeration Blower No. 11 Project 

Page 8 of 9 

19. INDEMNIFICATION. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify 
and hold harmless the District from any claims, choses in action or lawsuits, whereby any 
subcontractor, material or equipment supplier, laborer or any person who supplies work or 
materials to said work of improvement may claim damages, losses and expenses thereto 
arising out of or resulting from any claim for performance of work, including the legal defense of 
any stop notice action as well as attorney fees and costs. District may be required to engage 
separate legal counsel from that of the Contractor should District and Contractor be both named 
as defendants, cross-defendants or other parties to any such stop notice action in District’s sole 
discretion. Contractor shall be fully liable for any judgment or damages resulting from any claim 
for stop notice relief or other liability regarding payment for materials, supplies, labor or 
equipment under this contract. In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this 
paragraph by an employee of Contractor, a subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by them for whose acts they may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this 
paragraph shall not be limited in amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable 
by or for the Contractor or a subcontractor. In all cases, indemnification shall include attorney 
fees and court costs. 
 
Unless arising solely out of the active negligence, gross negligence or willful misconduct of the 
District or the Design Consultant, the Contractor shall indemnity, defend and hold harmless: 
(i) the District and its Board of Directors, officers, employees, agents and representative; (ii) the 
Design Consultant and its consultants for the Work and their respective agents and employees; 
and (iii) if one is designated by the District for the work, the Construction Manager and its 
agents and employees (collectively “the Indemnified Parties”). The Contractor’s obligations 
hereunder include indemnity, defense and hold harmless of the Indemnified Parties from and 
against any and all damages, losses, claims, demands or liabilities whether for damages, losses 
or other relief, including, without limitation attorney’s fees and costs which arise, in whole or in 
part, from the Work, the Contract Documents or the acts, omissions or other conduct of the 
Contractor or any subcontractor or any person or entity engaged by them for the Work. The 
Contractor’s obligations under the foregoing include without limitation: (i) injuries to or death of 
persons; (ii) damage to property; or (iii) theft or loss of property; (iv) stop notice claims asserted 
by any person or entity in connection with the Work; and (v) other losses, liabilities, damages or 
costs resulting from, in whole or part, any acts, omissions or other conduct of Contractor, any of 
Contractor’s Subcontractors, of any tier, or any other person or entity employed directly or 
indirectly by Contractor in connection with the Work and their respective agents, officers or 
employees. If any action or proceeding, whether judicial, administrative, arbitration or otherwise, 
shall be commenced on account of any claim, demand or liability subject to Contractor’s 
obligations hereunder, and such action or proceeding names any of the Indemnified Parties as 
a party thereto, the Contractor, at its sole cost and expense, shall defend the District and the 
Design Consultant in such action or proceeding with counsel reasonably satisfactory to the 
Indemnified Parties named in such action or proceeding. In the event that there shall be any 
judgment, award, ruling, settlement, or other relief arising out of any such action or proceeding 
to which any of the Indemnified Parties are bound by, Contractor shall pay, satisfy or otherwise 
discharge any such judgment, award, ruling, settlement or relief. Contractor shall indemnify and 
hold harmless the Indemnified Parties from any and all liability or responsibility arising out of 
any such judgment, award, ruling, settlement or relief. The Contractor’s obligations hereunder 
are binding upon Contractor’s Performance Bond Surety and these obligations shall survive 
notwithstanding Contractor’s completion of the Work or the termination of the Contract. 
 

70 of 122



 
Agreement for the Construction of the 
Aeration Blower No. 11 Project 

Page 9 of 9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement this ________day 
of ________________, 2020. 
 
 
WESTERN WATER CONSTRUCTORS, INC. 
 
 
 
By:     
 Josh McGarva 
 President 
Address: 707 Aviation Blvd., Santa Rosa, CA 95403 
 
 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By:     
 Anjali Lathi 
 Board Secretary 
Address: 5072 Benson Road, Union City, California 94587 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 
     
  Karen Murphy 
 Attorney for Union Sanitary District 

71 of 122



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
SEPTEMBER 28, 2020 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 
TITLE: Review and Approve Job Descriptions and Salary Range for Environmental 

Health & Safety Specialist and Senior HR Analyst (This is a Motion Item)  
 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Mark Carlson, Business Services Workgroup Manager/CFO 
 Gene Boucher, Human Resources Manager 
  
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the newly created job descriptions and salary ranges 
for the newly created Environmental Health and Safety Specialist and Senior Human Resources 
Analyst job classifications. 
 
Discussion 
With the departure of the Environmental Health and Safety Program Manager, the District re-
evaluated the duties assigned to this position.  The Environmental Health and Safety Program 
Manager had oversight for the District’s Safety Program along with Worker’s Compensation and 
budget for the program.   
 
The Environmental Health and Safety Specialist will continue to have oversight of the District’s 
safety program and safety related items.  The Senior Human Resources Analyst position will 
replace the Human Resources Analyst II classification and assume the same job functions of the 
previous position but take on worker’s compensation claims to better align and coordinate 
leave management for District Employees.  The HR Manager will administer the budget and 
have management function over both positions.  
 
With the redistribution of duties, the Safety Specialist position will have focus solely on the 
District’s safety program and safety related.  With increased construction going on at the 

72 of 122



District for the foreseeable future, the Safety Specialist will be able to provide oversight for 
safety as it relates to construction projects and normal District operations. 
 
The creation of the Environmental Health and Safety Specialist, Senior Human Resources 
Analyst, and Control Systems Specialists positions (referenced in additional staff report) will not 
increase headcount of District staff, and results in an overall cost savings to the District of 
approximately $1,800 annually. 
 
Background  
With the retirement of the former Environmental Health and Safety Program Manager in 
December 2019, the District recruited and filled in kind for the vacancy.  The District hired an 
internal candidate for the position who ultimately decided to return to his former position. 
 
With the announcement of the departure of the Environmental Health and Safety Program 
Manager, District staff began analyzing the tasks associated with the position and refocusing 
overall job duties.  As the position is responsible for the District’s safety program, the newly 
created position shifts focus to solely the safety related items at the District.  With the District 
undergoing many construction projects related to the Enhanced Treatment and Site Upgrade 
projects at the District, the Safety position will be able to provide greater support to 
construction activities at the District while shifting some of the administrative work to the 
Senior HR Analyst.  One area being shifted to Human Resources is the administration and 
management of the District’s Worker’s Compensation program. 
 
By moving the worker’s compensation functions to the newly created Senior Human Resources 
Analyst position, this will give employees one person to contact as it relates to their leaves.  
Since Worker’s Compensation is coordinated with other forms of leave, the Senior HR Analyst 
can assist employees with their leave and provide one point of contact.  
 
Previous Board Action 
None 
 
Attachments 
Environmental Health & Safety Specialist Job Description 
Senior Human Resources Analyst Job Description 
  

73 of 122



Environmental Health and Safety Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: Oct 1, 1997 
Revision Date: July 25, 2020 

Class Code: 2045 

 

Environmental Health & Safety Specialist                                                                              P a g e  | 1 of 8 

SALARY RANGE 

$47.42 – $62.24Hourly 
$3,793.66 ‐ $4,979.18 Biweekly 
$8,219.61 ‐ $10,788.23 Monthly 

$98,635.26 ‐ $129,458.78 Annually 
 

DESCRIPTION: 
Under general supervision in a team environment, reporting to the Human Resources Manager, 
the  Environmental  Health  and  Safety  Specialist  coordinates,  oversees,  and  participates  in 
activities supporting the District’s Occupational Health and Safety Program for all employees by 
being an active and visible proponent of safety. The Environmental Health and Safety Specialist 
is responsible for developing, implementing, and administering programs, policies, procedures, 
and work instructions for compliance, accident prevention, safety education, and loss control, 
interpreting  and  ensuring  compliance with  applicable  federal,  state,  and  local  environmental 
health and safety laws, codes, regulations, and standards, while  fostering a culture of safety, and 
assisting  work  groups  in  a  continuous  improvement  program  of  safety  performance,  and 
providing  the  management  staff,  employees  and  Safety  Star  Points  with  the  resources  and 
support necessary to perform their safety functions. 
 
DISTRINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 
This is a journey‐level classification.  Incumbents perform a full range of work in the following 
areas:  identifying  and  evaluating  potentially  hazardous  conditions,  reviewing  and  analyzing 
construction drawings and contractor programs to ensure regulatory compliance, serving as the 
District  liaison  to a variety of external  regulatory agencies, and developing and administering 
safety training programming to District staff.    Incumbents at this  level receive only occasional 
instruction or assistance as new or unusual  situations arise, work  independently and exercise 
judgment  and  initiative,  and  are  fully  aware  of  the  operating  procedures  and  policies  of  the 
District.  
 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 
Receives general supervision.  The assigned duties for employees in this classification require the 
exercise of judgment or choice among possible actions, sometimes without clear precedents and 
with  concern  for  the  consequences  of  the  action.    Employees  in  this  classification  work 
independently and may or may not work in close proximity to their coach or workgroup manager. 
 
 
 
 

74 of 122



Environmental Health and Safety Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: Oct 1, 1997 
Revision Date: July 25, 2020 

Class Code: 2045 

 

Environmental Health & Safety Specialist                                                                              P a g e  | 2 of 8 

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES: 
The duties specified below are representative of the range of duties assigned to this classification 
and are not intended to be an inclusive list.  The omission of specific statements or duties does 
not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to this 
position.    Management  reserves  the  right  to  add,  modify,  change,  or  rescind  the  work 
assignments of different positions. 
 
The Environmental Health and Safety Specialist has safety program management responsibilities 
that require technical knowledge of safety and of the work performed in a wastewater collection 
and treatment facility. 
 

 Plan,  organize,  coordinate,  oversee,  act  as  project  lead,  and  participate  in  the 
development and implementation of various environmental, health, and safety programs, 
policies, and procedures within assigned area of responsibility; establish an environment 
of workplace safety for employees by increasing safety awareness. 

 Plan,  direct,  and  provide  training  and  technical  assistance  and  support  for  District 
personnel regarding environmental health and safety programs, policies, procedures, and 
work  instructions  in  collaboration  with  the  Organizational  Performance  Manager; 
purchase and distribute personal protective equipment. 

 Develop  program  objectives  and  design  and  conduct  safety  training  programs  in 
conjunction  with  the  Organizational  Performance  Manager;  develop  or  recommend 
purchase  of  training  materials;  conduct  initial  refresher  training  classes  for  areas  of 
assignment, develop and organize specialized training as needed. 

 Coordinate various  safety‐related programs  including, but not  limited  to,  the District’s 
personal protective equipment, respiratory protection, excavation and shoring, hearing 
conservation, protective eyewear, and facility safety programs. 

 Investigate workplace incidents and near misses; recommend corrective action plans to 
appropriate District staff; evaluate and analyze trends, barriers to performance of safe 
work and root causes or  incidents and near misses; develop action plans to control or 
eliminate organizational barriers and/or hazards in the workplace. 

 Conduct various audits and inspections of District offices, facilities, and worksites; review 
construction drawings and contractor programs; identify unsafe conditions; assess district 
compliance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, codes, regulations, standards, 
and  District  rules;  analyze  data  to  identify  trends;  prepare  reports;  define  control 
measures; monitor corrective action plans; recommend process improvements and policy 
and procedural changes. 

 Perform  permit  required  confined  space  assessments,  and  conduct  job  safety 
assessments  under  a  wide‐variety  or  working  conditions  both  in  industrial  and 
construction settings. 

75 of 122



Environmental Health and Safety Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: Oct 1, 1997 
Revision Date: July 25, 2020 

Class Code: 2045 

 

Environmental Health & Safety Specialist                                                                              P a g e  | 3 of 8 

 Assist with elements of managing  the District’s DOT safety program as assigned; work 
with pre‐  and post‐employment  testing  and monitoring programs,  including non‐DOT, 
and DOT alcohol and drug testing, fitness for duty, DMV screening and monitoring, and 
related testing and notification programs as appropriate per District policies. 

 Assist with management of hazardous waste generated from District operations; maintain 
records on hazardous waste disposal; accompany hazardous waste disposal contactors in 
the  pick‐up  of  hazardous  waste,  and  ensure  that  proper  procedures  are  followed 
including inspection or transport vehicles, proper signing of hazardous waste manifests, 
and proper accounting of hazardous waste materials. 

 Represent the District with outside agencies and regulatory entities; coordinate program 
activities;  communicate  and  share  information  to  improve/ensure  compliance; 
participate on various organization‐wide and inter‐agency committees and teams. 

 Complete and maintain required environmental, health, and safety documentation and 
records;  prepare  reports,  including  those  concerning  new  or  ongoing  programs  and 
program effectiveness. 

 Maintain  awareness  of  new  developments  in  the  field  of  environmental,  health,  and 
safety;  incorporate  new  developments/regulations  as  appropriate;  attend  training,  as 
necessary. 

 Researches, organizes, and analyzes information; prepares specialized analytical reports 
relating  to  safety  statistics,  including  program  regulations,  policies  and  procedures, 
CalOSHA, safety monitoring, hazardous material pickups, and safety equipment.  Presents 
various reports to the District Board of Directors. 

 Responds to inquiries regarding safety equipment including proper use, safety procedures 
and  practices  in  use  of  equipment,  vehicles,  heavy  equipment,  forklifts,  and  other 
machinery. 

 Assess  and  recommend  equipment,  furniture,  and  materials  to  ensure  safe  work 
environment and conditions to maintain the District’s ergonomic plan for all employees. 

 Advises and provides recommendations to the General Manager, Work Group Managers, 
and the Coaches on ways to improve the District's Safety Program and standard operating 
procedures. 

 Oversees and coordinates  the Safety Program with the management staff, employees, 
and  Safety  Star  Points;  ensures  that  safety  information,  resources,  and  services  are 
available so that action can be taken to quickly resolve problems/concerns and remedy 
unsafe conditions/ practices. 

 Initiates and performs regular plant and field safety and HazMat inspections. Identifies 
potential hazards and violations for correction by Work Group management.  

 Chairs regular Safety Committee meetings;  takes appropriate action on  issues that are 
identified during the meetings; meet regularly with Safety Points to discuss issues; acts as 

76 of 122



Environmental Health and Safety Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: Oct 1, 1997 
Revision Date: July 25, 2020 

Class Code: 2045 

 

Environmental Health & Safety Specialist                                                                              P a g e  | 4 of 8 

a resource for the management staff, employees, and Safety Points; and coaches, trains, 
and develops staff responsible for coordinating safety meetings within their own work 
group.  

 Acknowledges  safe  practices  by  employees  and  participates  in  safety  recognition 
programs. 

 Works with  the Organizational Performance Manager  to develop strategies  to provide 
safety  training  by  developing,  overseeing,  and  implementing  appropriate  safety 
topics/classes/  workshops;  works  with  Safety  Star  Points  to  ensure  they  are  able  to 
provide  information  to  their  Work  Groups;  identifies  and  conducts  safety  training  in 
selected areas. 

 Addresses  employee questions  and  concerns  regarding  safe work practices  and OSHA 
requirements. 

 Assist,  and provide backup  coverage  to Human Resources with  the District's Workers' 
Compensation program. 

 Prepares and/or oversees the preparation of data for a variety of District‐wide reports 
such as the annual CSRMA audit report, the OSHA 300 log, and reports to the offices of 
Cities, Counties and State.  

 
Incumbents  will  perform  any  other  duties  that  are  appropriate  for  the  scope  and  level  of 
responsibility of this classification. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS: 
The level and scope of knowledge, skills, and abilities listed in this section are related to the job 
duties as defined under Distinguishing Characteristics. 
 
Education, Experience and Training:  
The following combination represents the minimum training and experience requirements for 
this classification.  A typical way of acquiring the knowledge, skills, and abilities to perform this 
work is: 

Training  
Equivalent  to a bachelor's degree  from an accredited  college or university with major 
coursework  in  occupational  health  and  safety,  industrial  safety,  environmental  safety, 
construction technology, or a related field 
 
Experience 
Two (2) years’ experience administering environmental health and safety programs and 
projects. Experience in an industrial or construction setting is highly preferred. 
   
Substitution 

77 of 122



Environmental Health and Safety Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: Oct 1, 1997 
Revision Date: July 25, 2020 

Class Code: 2045 

 

Environmental Health & Safety Specialist                                                                              P a g e  | 5 of 8 

Directly related experience may be substituted for the college requirement on the basis 
of one‐and‐one‐half years of experience for one year of education to a maximum of four 
years.   

 
Knowledge of:  

 The principles and practices of employee health and safety 

 Field work, including the conditions that can affect that work 

 Health and safety regulations 

 The practices of wastewater collection and treatment or a similar process  

 Training and enforcement of environmental regulations as they impact employees 

 Confined space entry 

 Traffic safety 

 Fall protection 

 Trench safety 

 Electrical safety 

 Lock‐out tag‐out regulations and practices 

 Hearing conservation 

 Respiratory protection 

 Worker’s compensation 

 Ergonomic principles and issues.   
 
Skill in:  

 Managing projects and providing direction or input as appropriate. 

 Organizing work, setting priorities, and exercising sound judgment.   

 Use of common safety equipment.   

 Common desktop applications and software as well as specialized software related to the 
work.   

 Principles, practices, and methods effective in safety training.   

 Occupational hazards and standard safety practices.   

 Technical report writing.   

 Research, analytical and statistical methods.   

 Best practices for office procedures, methods, and equipment. 

 English usage, grammar, spelling, vocabulary, and punctuation. 

 Principals  and  techniques  for providing  a high  level  of  customer  service by effectively 
dealing with the public, vendors, contractors, and District staff. 

 
Ability to:  

 Understand and carry out oral and written instructions in English 

78 of 122



Environmental Health and Safety Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: Oct 1, 1997 
Revision Date: July 25, 2020 

Class Code: 2045 

 

Environmental Health & Safety Specialist                                                                              P a g e  | 6 of 8 

 Focus on the best interests of the District as a whole 

 advocate for the overall safety of the District and for both management and employees 

 Read, analyze, evaluate, and summarize regulations, legislation, reports, materials, and 
data 

 Prepare  clear,  concise,  persuasive,  and  accurate  reports,  correspondence,  and  other 
materials 

 Maintain thorough and comprehensive records 

 Operate and maintain a variety of safety equipment and hand and power tools. 

 Lear to and administer safety training to District staff 

 Perform mathematical calculations 

 Read engineering drawings, architectural, mechanical, and other technical documents 

 Understand and follow verbal and written instructions 

 Organize own work, set priorities, and meet critical time deadlines 

 Use common desktop applications and software 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing 

 Use tact, initiative, and prudence within general policy, procedural, and legal guidelines 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course 
of work 

 
Interpersonal Effectiveness:  

 Ability  to  work  effectively  in  a  team‐based  organization  focused  on  continuous 
improvement  

 Establish  and  maintain  a  positive  customer  service  attitude  and  effective  working 
relationships with management and employees 

 Demonstrate strong two‐way communication skills including the ability to listen, explain, 
and facilitate; ask for and provide input; offer help without being asked 

 Accept and make suggestions 

 Work with others to solve problems 

 Provide recognition and encouragement 
 
Safety Resource for the District:  

 Analyzes safety requirements 

 Identify  and  address  issues  and  concerns,  explore  solutions,  and  implement 
improvements 

 Seek ways to continuously improve and/or develop processes and best practices 

 Considered an authority on safety; can be counted on to follow through 

 Monitor status of new and changing laws and regulations. 
 

79 of 122



Environmental Health and Safety Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: Oct 1, 1997 
Revision Date: July 25, 2020 

Class Code: 2045 

 

Environmental Health & Safety Specialist                                                                              P a g e  | 7 of 8 

Licenses, Certificates, or Credentials:  

 Must possess a valid Class C California driver's license, have, and maintain a satisfactory 
driving record, and be insurable by the District to operate District vehicles.  

 Incumbents are expected to maintain certification for specific programs and equipment 
in which they conduct training. 

 Must be willing to take and successfully complete relevant course work 

 Must be certified in safety by a recognized professional organization/association or obtain 
certification within one year of appointment. 

 
Other  Requirements:  Must  possess  the  physical  characteristics  to  perform  the  critical  and 
important duties of the job.  Must be willing to work different hours as needed. 
 
WORKING CONDITIONS 
 
Environmental Conditions 
Office  and  field  environment;  some  positions  require  frequent  field  visits  or  occasional  field 
assignments; travel from site to site; work closely with others or alone; exposure to electrical and 
radiant  energy;  irregular  work  hours;  being  on‐call  to  respond  to  emergency  situations  or 
accidents/injuries, may  involve exposure to  inclement weather; heat, cold, dampness, chilling 
and dry atmospheric conditions; uneven terrain; slippery surfaces; work in confined spaces; work 
at elevated heights, work with machinery; work around moving vehicles and around high traffic; 
exposure to biohazards; dirt, dust, fumes, vapors, smoke, gases, noise, poison oak, chemicals, 
biological  and  chemical  contaminates,  wildfire,  and  other  conditions  associated  with 
construction sites, wastewater treatment plants, and urban and remote field conditions. 
 
Physical Conditions 
Essential and other  important functions may require maintaining physical condition necessary 
for walking, standing or sitting for extended periods of time; audiovisual acuity; manual dexterity; 
moderate  lifting;  operating  motorized  equipment  and  vehicles,  walking  on  uneven  surfaces 
including  hard  terrains,  uneven  slopes,  and  inclined  surfaces;  stooping,  pushing,  pulling, 
squatting, crawling, twisting, kneeling, climbing, and bending at neck and waist; simple grasping; 
fine manipulation; power grasping; work above and below shoulder in awkward positions. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 
 
Disaster Service Worker 
Employees of Union Sanitary District are, by State and Federal law, Disaster Service Workers. In 
the event of a declaration of emergency, any employee may be assigned activities that promote 

80 of 122



Environmental Health and Safety Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: Oct 1, 1997 
Revision Date: July 25, 2020 

Class Code: 2045 

 

Environmental Health & Safety Specialist                                                                              P a g e  | 8 of 8 

the protection of public health and safety or the preservation of lives and property, either at the 
District or within the local, or their own community. 
 
Approved by the Board of Directors: 10/97 
Revised: 5/01; 1/06, 7/20 
Position status: Unclassified, Exempt (Professional/Confidential) 

81 of 122



Senior Human Resources Analyst 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: September 2020 
Revision Date:  

Class Code: XXXX 

 

Senior Human Resources Analyst                                                                                             P a g e  | 1 of 6 

SALARY RANGE 

$55.45 ‐ $69.32 Hourly 
$4,436.50 ‐ $5,822.90 Biweekly 
$9,612.42 ‐ $12,015.51 Monthly 

$115,349.00 ‐ $151,395.40 Annually 
 

DESCRIPTION: 

Under direction  from the Human Resources Manager, performs complex and specialized work  in a 
variety  of  human  resource  areas  such  as  recruitment  and  selection,  classification,  compensation, 
Workers Compensation, leave management, and employee relations. This is the senior level position 
in the Human Resource Analyst series.  Positions in this class are distinguished by performing the most 
difficult and significant work that occurs  in one or more of these areas. While primary assignments 
may be concentrated in one or more human resources specialty areas, incumbents are expected to 
perform the most complex professional work in any of the defined areas as workload needs require. 
This class is distinguished from the Human Resources Analyst II by the complex level of the full range 
of duties assigned, independent work performed, and judgment and initiative required. Individuals are 
expected to exercise considerable initiative and independent judgement in the day to day performance 
of  their work.    Strong verbal  and written  communication  skills  and analytical  skills  are essential  in 
effectively carrying out the duties of this position. 
 
DISTRINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 
This is an advanced journey level and/or lead level class in the Human Resources Analyst series. This 
class is distinguished from the Human Resources Analyst II level of the series by the complexity and 
difficulty  of  duties  performed  and  the  degree  of  independence  to  make  decision  in  non‐routine 
circumstances.    Incumbents  perform  the  most  difficult  and  responsible  types  of  duties  assigned 
including managing and maintaining personnel‐related databases and software programs, resolving 
difficult and sensitive personnel  issues and concerns, managing  leaves and worker’s compensation, 
and  considerable  interaction  with  a  variety  of  individuals  within  and  outside  of  the  organization.  
Employees at this level are required to be fully trained in all procedures related to assigned area of 
responsibility. 
  
SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 
Receives general direction.  Employees in this classification are responsible for a program or function 
and  is  expected  to  carry  out  necessary  activities  without  direction,  except  as  new  or  unusual 
circumstances require. 
 
 

82 of 122



Senior Human Resources Analyst 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: September 2020 
Revision Date:  

Class Code: XXXX 

 

Senior Human Resources Analyst                                                                                             P a g e  | 2 of 6 

 
 
EXAMPLES OF DUTIES: 
The duties specified below are representative of the range of duties assigned to this classification and 
are not intended to be an inclusive list.  The omission of specific statements or duties does not exclude 
them  from  the  position  if  the  work  is  similar,  related  or  a  logical  assignment  to  this  position.  
Management reserves the right to add, modify, change, or rescind the work assignments of different 
positions. 
 
The Senior Human Resources Analyst has the responsibilities that require technical knowledge of all 
human resources functions. 
 

 Prepare  and  direct  recruitment  and  selection  plans  with  subject‐matter  experts  to  obtain 
qualified candidates for vacancies;  prepare and monitor the distribution of job announcements 
and  other  recruitment  materials;  design  and  administer  job‐related  selection  procedures, 
including application reviews, written, performance, and oral exams, assessment processes, 
and other selection tools; analyze test data and recommend pass points; establish employment 
eligibility lists; use online applicant tracking and reporting system. 

 Perform  complex  compensation  assignments  including  administration  of  the  unclassified 
employees' compensation tracking and reporting process; conduct classification/salary surveys 
(sometimes in conjunction with unclassified and classified representatives); report findings as 
directed;  maintain  salary  data  for  unclassified  and  management  staff;  calculate  pay 
adjustments for promotions and merit increases; provide related information and consultation 
as requested, and create a variety of reports. 

 Develop and update class descriptions to establish  job‐related qualifications, standards, and 
requirements. Conduct classification reviews and job audits. 

 Collect  and  analyze  compensation  and  benefits  data;  conduct  studies  related  to  District 
benefits  coverage,  costs, and carriers;  conduct  research  related  to negotiations;  respond  to 
requests from other agencies to provide compensation and benefits data; prepare statistical 
analyses and oral and written reports of research findings; make recommendations as required.  
Assist  in administering the benefits program; work with  insurance and benefits providers to 
resolve issues and concerns. 

 Manage the FMLA/CFRA and Workers Compensation Leaves for the District including the ADA 
interactive process.    Ensure  that  appropriate employee notifications are made,  appropriate 
medical certification is received, and all leaves are entered and tracked in the Kronos system.  
Conduct Interactive Discussions with employees and Coaches as needed. 

 Manage  the District's Workers' Compensation program, ensuring  that data  is  compiled and 
maintained;  maintains  contact  with  injured  workers,  immediate  coach,  executive 
management, doctors and other health care professionals, the Workers' Compensation claims 

83 of 122



Senior Human Resources Analyst 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: September 2020 
Revision Date:  

Class Code: XXXX 

 

Senior Human Resources Analyst                                                                                             P a g e  | 3 of 6 

administrator, and a variety of other sources to ascertain injured workers' status and fitness 
for duty; receives and reviews a variety of sensitive health‐related information about injured 
workers that must be kept confidential. Prepare and/or oversee the preparation of data for a 
variety of District‐wide Workers Compensation reports such as the annual CSRMA audit report, 
the OSHA 300 log, and reports to the offices of Cities, Counties and State. 

 Provide  consultation  to management on employee performance  issues; HR policy and  legal 
issues; and employee  relations  issues,  including dispute  resolution and disciplinary matters.  
Conduct investigations, as necessary. 

 Design,  develop,  update  various  training  programs  including  harassment  prevention, 
Leadership School courses, policy orientations. 

 Conduct complex studies and research related to human resources functional areas, including 
policy and procedures development, employee orientation, and human resources practices and 
procedures.  

 Work closely with accounting and payroll staff on implementing personnel actions and salary 
adjustments to both classified and unclassified salary schedules. 

 Monitor developments in the human resources field and evaluate their impact on the District. 

 Interpret,  apply,  and assist  in  the development  and  implementation of District  policies  and 
procedures;  interpret  and  apply  federal  and  state  rules  and  regulations,  Memorandum  of 
Understanding, Unclassified Employees Rules and Regulations; benefits regulations, and other 
requirements. 

 Provide  support  during  negotiations  including  research,  classification  and  compensation 
research and costing, task force assignments, compiling data, and record keeping. 

 Respond  to  and  advise  employees  on matters  related  to  employment,  promotion,  District 
policies and procedures, and other HR‐related issues; respond to work‐related questions from 
outside agencies, consultants, and others; represent the District in contacts with various public 
agencies. 

 Provide back‐up to Human Resources Manager during periods of absence. 

 Develop and maintain a variety of records related to the HR function. 
 

Incumbents will perform any other duties that are appropriate for the scope and level of responsibility 
of this classification. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS: 
The level and scope of knowledge, skills, and abilities listed in this section are related to the job duties 
as defined under Distinguishing Characteristics. 
 
 
 

84 of 122



Senior Human Resources Analyst 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: September 2020 
Revision Date:  

Class Code: XXXX 

 

Senior Human Resources Analyst                                                                                             P a g e  | 4 of 6 

Education, Experience and Training:  
The  following  combination  represents  the minimum  training  and  experience  requirements  for  this 
classification.  A typical way of acquiring the knowledge, skills, and abilities to perform this work is: 

 
Training  
Equivalent  to  a  bachelor's  degree  from  an  accredited  college  or  university  with  major 
coursework in business administration, public personnel administration, or a related field; and, 
 
Experience 
Minimum of five years increasingly responsible human resources experience in two or more of 
the  following  areas:  recruitment,  selection,  and  employment  testing;  classification; 
compensation; Workers  Compensation  program management,  employee  relations;  benefits 
administration; and developing, implementing, and managing soft skills training  
 
Substitution 
Directly related experience, may be substituted for the college requirement on the basis of one‐
and‐one‐half years of experience for one year of education to a maximum of four years.   

 
Knowledge of:  

 The principles and practices of public human resources administration,  including recruitment 
and selection, classification, compensation, employee relations, benefits administration 

 Development and implementation of soft skills training 

 Development and implementation of Preventing Harassment Training 

 Various governmental guidelines and regulations related to functional areas 

 Employee/Labor relations 

 Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the interactive process 

 Worker’s compensation procedures 

 Correct business English usage and standard office procedures 

 Software programs related to the work. 
 
Skill in:  

 Applying the principles and practices of personnel administration 

 Reading, analyzing, evaluating, and summarizing written materials and statistical data 

 Editing the work of others 

 Preparing  clear,  accurate,  and  concise  reports,  correspondence,  recruitment  materials, 
classification studies, and other human resources materials 

 Conducting studies and analyses in functional areas 

 Performing basic statistical analysis 

85 of 122



Senior Human Resources Analyst 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: September 2020 
Revision Date:  

Class Code: XXXX 

 

Senior Human Resources Analyst                                                                                             P a g e  | 5 of 6 

 Using word processing and spreadsheet programs. 
 
Ability to:  

 Read and interpret rules, regulations, and laws 

 Understand and carry out oral and written instructions in English 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships 

 Read and interpret various human resources materials, evaluate alternative courses of action, 
and draw sound conclusions 

 Develop comprehensive plans from general instructions 

 Exercise sound judgment in the performance of the work 

 Perform effectively in stressful situations 

 Maintain attention to detail and confidentiality 

 Work under critical deadlines 

 Learn and use the District's human resources information system. 
 
Interpersonal Effectiveness:  

 Ability to work effectively in a team‐based organization focused on continuous improvement 

 Establish and maintain a positive customer service attitude and effective working relationships 
with customers 

 Demonstration of strong two‐way communication skills, including the ability to listen, explain, 
and facilitate; ability to ask for and provide input 

 Offer help without being asked 

 Accept and make suggestions 

 Work with others to solve problems 

 Provide recognition and encouragement. 
 
Other Requirements:  
Must possess the physical characteristics to perform the critical and important duties of the job. May 
be  required  to work  at  alternate hours  based on workload  and employee/District  need.     May be 
occasionally required to drive a motor vehicle or otherwise travel off site. If operating a District vehicle, 
must be insurable by the District. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WORKING CONDITIONS 

86 of 122



Senior Human Resources Analyst 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: September 2020 
Revision Date:  

Class Code: XXXX 

 

Senior Human Resources Analyst                                                                                             P a g e  | 6 of 6 

 
Environmental Conditions 
Office environment; exposure to computer screens and copiers, moderate noise levels, and controlled 
temperature conditions.  May be required to come in early or stay late depending on District needs or 
emergency. 
 
Physical Conditions 
Essential  functions  may  require  maintaining  physical  condition  necessary  for  reaching,  walking, 
standing or sitting for prolonged periods of time; extensive use of computer keyboard and mouse; light 
to moderate lifting; reaching above head; visual acuity for reading documents, correspondence, and 
computer screens; operating a variety of manual and automated office equipment. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 
 
Disaster Service Worker 
Employees of Union Sanitary District are, by State and Federal law, Disaster Service Workers. In the 
event  of  a  declaration  of  emergency,  any  employee may  be  assigned  activities  that  promote  the 
protection of public health and safety or the preservation of lives and property, either at the District 
or within the local, or their own community. 
 
Approved by the Board of Directors: XX/XX 
Revised: XXXX 
Position status: Unclassified, Exempt (Professional/Confidential) 

87 of 122



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
SEPTEMBER 28, 2020 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 
TITLE: Review and Approve Job Descriptions, Salary Range for Control Systems 

Specialist, and Side Letter Agreement between Service Employees 
International Union, Local 1021 and the District (This is a Motion Item)  

 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Mark Carlson, Business Services Workgroup Manager/CFO 
 Gene Boucher, Human Resources Manager 
  
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the newly created job description and salary ranges 
for the newly created Control Systems Specialist and the Side Letter Agreement between 
Service Employees International Union, Local 1021.   
 
Discussion 
The creation of the Control Systems Specialist position aligns duties performed by the 
Instrument Technician/Electrician with control systems, SCADA work that was typically 
performed by an outside consultant. 
 
This position allows the District to move an existing employee into this classification and have 
them perform the work on SCADA and other control systems, rather than having an outside 
consultant perform the work.  This will create more efficiency as the internal employee can 
troubleshoot and repair any problems that arise with the control systems here at the District. 
 
The incumbent will continue performing the duties of the Instrument Technician/Electrician 
position and additional add the responsibility for the work on SCADA and District control 
systems.   
 

88 of 122



The District and SEIU Local 1021 met and conferred over the creation of the new position as 
representation of the Control Systems Specialist will be represented by the Union.  A side letter 
was created modifying section 34 of the current MOU to include this position as represented by 
the Union and allowing the District the right to fill at either the lower level Instrument 
Technician/Electrician position or the higher classification of Control Systems Specialist position 
should the incumbent leave the District.  
 
The creation of the Control Systems Specialist, along with the Environmental Health and Safety 
Specialist and Senior Human Resources Analyst positions (referenced in additional staff report) 
will not increase headcount of District staff, and results in an overall cost savings to the District 
of approximately $1,800 annually. 
 
Background  
One of the District’s Instrument Technician/Electrician’s has been performing work on Control 
Systems and SCAD that were previously performed by an outside consultant.  The duties 
performed by the incumbent are of value to the District in helping us maintain our systems. 
 
Previously, the District contracted with an outside consultant to come in on call and 
troubleshoot issues and make repairs.  One District employee has learned over the years and 
received training in the troubleshooting and repair of these systems.  Our employee has been 
performing this work for some time.   
 
The creation of the Control Systems Specialist position will allow the incumbent to move into a 
higher classification that better aligns the duties they are performing.  This will allow the 
District to have an internal employee performing much of the work that was performed by an 
outside consultant previously. 
 
Previous Board Action 
No Previous Board actions. 
 
Attachments 
Control Systems Specialist Job Description 
Side Letter Agreement between the District and SEIU Local 1021 
  

89 of 122



Control Systems Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: September 2020 
Revision Date: September 2020 

Class Code: XXXX 

 

Control Systems Specialist                                                                                                            P a g e  | 1 of 8 

SALARY RANGE 

$53.22 – $64.69Hourly 
$4,257.46 ‐ $5,175.07 Biweekly 
$9,224.51 ‐ $11,212.66 Monthly 

$110,694.07 ‐ $134,551.87 Annually 
 

DESCRIPTION: 
Under  general  supervision  in  a  team  environment,  performs  journey‐level  work  involving 
installation,  fabrication,  troubleshooting, maintenance,  and  repair  of  various  electronic 
monitoring, and industrial automation controls, including Programmable Logic Controllers (PLC), 
Human Machine Interface (HMI), and Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system, 
and  related  equipment  used  in  wastewater  treatment  plants,  pump  stations,  and  transport 
systems.  Performs  routine  and  complex  Instrument  Technician/Electrician  duties  and  special 
projects related to the SCADA system as required. Performs Cathodic Protection field tests and 
technical  duties  in  the  investigation  of  corrosion  to  pipelines  and  related  structures;  and 
performs related work as required. 

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 
This is a journey‐level classification.  Incumbents perform a full range of work in the following 
areas:  incumbents will  independently  install, maintain,  troubleshoot,  repair  and  document  a 
wide‐range  of  industrial  instrumentation,  electronic  monitoring,  metering,  controlling  and 
signaling  devices  used  in  the  treatment  of wastewater,  requiring  basic  knowledge  of  control 
systems  and  components  including  Supervisory  Control  and  Data  Acquisition  (SCADA)  and 
Programmable  Logic Control  (PLC)  software and hardware.   Assignments are given  in general 
terms and are subject to periodic review while in progress and upon completion.  The level of 
work spans the enter scope of industrial instrumentation and telemetry systems.  There is some 
latitude for  independent  judgment and action  in well‐defined areas of work.    Incumbents are 
subject to standby duty and emergency call outs and are fully aware of the operating procedures 
and policies of the District.  
 
SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 
Receives general supervision.  The assigned duties for employees in this classification require the 
exercise of judgment or choice among possible actions, sometimes without clear precedents and 
with  concern  for  the  consequences  of  the  action.    Employees  in  this  classification  work 
independently and may or may not work in close proximity to their coach or workgroup manager. 
 
 
 

90 of 122



Control Systems Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: September 2020 
Revision Date: September 2020 

Class Code: XXXX 

 

Control Systems Specialist                                                                                                            P a g e  | 2 of 8 

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES: 
The duties specified below are representative of the range of duties assigned to this classification 
and are not intended to be an inclusive list.  The omission of specific statements or duties does 
not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to this 
position.    Management  reserves  the  right  to  add,  modify,  change,  or  rescind  the  work 
assignments of different positions. 
 

 Serve as subject matter expert lending technical knowledge and recommendations to the 

SCADA  Steering  Committee  and  capital  improvement  projects  related  to  SCADA, 

electronic, and process control systems. 

 Maintain and develop (PLC) programs and ladder logic to reflect changes in operations 

and user needs. Work with Operations personnel and other staff to make process control 

changes and other adjustments that require SCADA or ladder logic changes in the PLC’s.  

 Determine  suitability  of  new  applications  and  equipment  to  District  uses  and  needs. 
Install  new  or  upgrade  existing  control  system  equipment  and  associated  electrical 
connections. 

 Integrate new applications and modify PLC programs and equipment to optimize plant 

operations, operator convenience; design, fabricate, maintain, and install electrical and 

electronic assemblies to enhance PLC, telemetry, and instrumentation systems.  

 Performs a variety of complex tasks troubleshooting, diagnosis of control system issues, 

providing solutions or corrective action to resolve the issue. Diagnose telemetry and field 

instrument problems by logical tracing of the failed function from its source to its final 

destination and determine and implement needed repairs or modifications. 

 Review, create, and modify electrical prints and drawings for technical content, accuracy, 
and proper and desirable PLC and SCADA system interface. 

 Use  computer  and  software  to  develop,  troubleshoot  or make  requested  changes  to 
SCADA and/ or PLC programs for the purpose of monitoring operational processes and 
field equipment. 

 Assemble  and  install  new  equipment  components,  set‐up,  and  integrate  into  existing 
SCADA system operations. 

 Test, rewire, calibrate, adjust, reassemble, reinstall, and return to full operating condition 
all PLC and related components. 

 Check proper PLC operation, and proper SCADA system functionality. 

 Develop SCADA screens. 

 Install and maintain PLC firmware. 

 Review and provide  input on  capital  improvement project drawings and  submittals  as 
requested. Monitor and inspect projects and work performed by contractors and outside 

91 of 122



Control Systems Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: September 2020 
Revision Date: September 2020 

Class Code: XXXX 

 

Control Systems Specialist                                                                                                            P a g e  | 3 of 8 

agencies  to  ensure  proper  SCADA  standards  and  electrical  code  compliance  and 
performance as requested. 

 Provide  technical  support,  inspection,  and  coordination  over  control  system 
modifications made by contractors or District staff. 

 Work with appropriate work groups and IT staff to provide and/or develop data interfaces 
between operations and SCADA applications. Assist  IT personnel to diagnose problems 
related to IT Standard operating systems and databases. Provide SCADA system hardware 
and software support with IT personnel as needed. 

 Follow instrumentation standards, controls and automation industry standards, and the 
District’s  SCADA/PLC  standards. Document work and comply with all  accepted change 
control  procedures  Follow  proper  safety  precautions  related  to  instrumentation  and 
electrical maintenance and repair. 

 Assist Plant Operations Trainer in development of SCADA training documents. 

 Perform cathodic protection survey on district structures including tanks and pipelines; 
analyze  data;  evaluate  corrosion  control  problems.  Measures  cathodic  protection 
electrical  currents  in  soils  and  structures  to  detect  current  levels  that  fall  outside 
allowable ranges and interpret results. 

 Prepares cathodic protection survey reports of findings and make recommendations on 
protective or mitigating measures. 

 If  required,  assist  outside  contractors  in  the  installation,  maintenance,  and  repair  of 
cathodic protection stations and rectifiers. 

 Maintains logs and records on cathodic protection stations showing locations, map, and 
file. 

 Incumbents perform Instrumentation Technician/Electrician duties, as required, including 
VFD troubleshooting and provide on‐call support. 

 
Incumbents  will  perform  any  other  duties  that  are  appropriate  for  the  scope  and  level  of 
responsibility of this classification. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS: 
The level and scope of knowledge, skills, and abilities listed in this section are related to the job 
duties as defined under Distinguishing Characteristics. 
 
Education and Experience  
The following combination represents the minimum training and experience requirements for 
this classification.  A typical way of acquiring the knowledge, skills, and abilities to perform this 
work is: 
 
 

92 of 122



Control Systems Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: September 2020 
Revision Date: September 2020 

Class Code: XXXX 

 

Control Systems Specialist                                                                                                            P a g e  | 4 of 8 

Education  
Completion of the twelfth grade or its equivalent. 
 
Experience 
Five (5) years’ recent advanced or journey‐level experience in control systems including 
PLC’s  and  SCADA,  and  electrical  and  instrumentation  repair  and  maintenance  in  an 
industrial environment. 
   

Knowledge of:  

 Principles and practices of PLC programming software applications 

 Theory and operation of digital computer and PLC 

 PLC fundamentals, hardware/software and operation, basic and advance programming, 

project development, maintenance, and troubleshooting  

 Control  systems  theory  and  its  practical  application  to  process  control  and  field 
instrumentation 

 Human Machine  Interface  (HMI)  fundamentals,  project  design  and  development,  PLC 
interface 

 SCADA operations and maintenance, SCADA system components, concepts of industrial 
network communications, and application development 

 Basic computer programming 

 Cathodic  Protection  Theory,  basic  chemistry,  basic  corrosion  control  principles,  test 
instruments used in cathodic protection work 

 The  principles,  practices,  materials,  tools,  and  equipment  used  in  the  installation, 
calibration, maintenance, and repair of electrical motors, electrical control equipment, 
transformers,  circuitry  and  other  types  of  lighting  and  power  equipment  and 
instrumentation 

 Control  systems  and  electrical  theory  and  application  to  wastewater  and  associated 
facilities 

 In‐depth understanding of control systems and industrial automation to include wiring, 

repairing, and maintaining different instrument field devices to PLC 

 Electrical/Electronic/Instrumentation symbols, ISA (International Standards of 

Automation) standards 

 Basic Network Communications, Types of Communication Protocols, Routers, Switches, 

Fiber Optics, IP and ModBus Addressing, VBA Code Scripting 

 Telemetry  systems,  process  instruments,  communication  systems,  and  data  logging 
equipment common to a wastewater treatment plant and pumping stations 

 Building and electrical codes related to the work 

 Mathematics including algebra, statistics, and geometry   

93 of 122



Control Systems Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: September 2020 
Revision Date: September 2020 

Class Code: XXXX 

 

Control Systems Specialist                                                                                                            P a g e  | 5 of 8 

 Safety practices and regulations pertaining to the work 
Skill in:  

 Diagnose PLC and computer hardware and software problems  

 Proficient  in  the  use  of  computers  and  be  able  to  use  the  following  software; 
Studio5000,  Logix5000,  Logix500,  FactoryTalk  View ME,  GE  iFix, Microsoft  Vault, 
Siemens TI Soft. 

 Utilize PLC, SCADA/HMI, and field devices as tools and resources to troubleshoot and 
make repairs. 

 Conform to Instrumentation Industry Standards, and District's SCADA/PLC Standards 

 Reading and interpreting electrical and electronic schematic diagrams 

 Document work and comply with all accepted change control procedures. 

 Diagnosing defects in a variety of electronic, pneumatic, and electrical equipment 
common  to  instrumentation  and  electrical  apparatus  common  to  a  wastewater 
facility and pumping stations 

 Create, update, or modify electrical/electronic diagrams using Autodesk AutoCAD. 

 Strong organizational and documentation skills. Effectively organize and prioritize 
assigned work, and manage multiple tasks. 

 Safely use cathodic protection test instruments, operating hand, and power tools. 

 Perform cathodic protection  survey. Understand and  interpret  results. Write  and 
submit a report and recommend solutions. 

Ability to:  

 Strong analytical ability and logical though process to diagnose, inspect, install, repair, 
maintain,  calibrate,  test,  and  troubleshoot  electrical,  electronic  instrumentation, 
SCADA, PLC’s, and related equipment.  Understand ladder logic, and be able to modify, 
write or create PLC programs and routines. 

 Dexterity  to  configure,  update,  install,  and  test  components  associated  with  PLCs, 
SCADA/HMI, controls, and automation system devices. 

 Read and interpret electrical and electronic diagrams and schematic wiring diagrams 

 Learn District‐specific computer systems 

 Design  instrument,  analog  control,  telemetry  installations  and  simple  electronic 
circuits 

 Perform  mathematical  calculations  common  to  electrical  and  instrumentation 
equipment repair operations. 

 Effectively work in a collaborative organization focused on continuous improvement; 
establish  and  maintain  a  positive  customer  service  attitude  and  effective  working 
relationships with internal and external customers. 

 Strong  two‐way  communication  skills,  including  the  ability  to  listen,  explain  and 
facilitate; ability to ask for input; offer help without being asked; accept suggestions; 

94 of 122



Control Systems Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: September 2020 
Revision Date: September 2020 

Class Code: XXXX 

 

Control Systems Specialist                                                                                                            P a g e  | 6 of 8 

work with  others  to  solve  problems;  and  provide  recognition  and  encouragement; 
ability  to  address  co‐workers  needs;  identifying  issues  and  concerns,  exploring 
solutions and implementing improvements.  

 Understand  and  follow  all  applicable  safety  rules.  Safely  perform  routine 
electrical/electronic control/instrumentation and maintenance work. 

 Learn operational characteristics of cathodic protection systems. 

 Prepare clear and concise cathodic protection field notes and reports. 

 Understand and carry out oral and written instructions in English 

 Communicate  effectively,  both  orally  and  in  writing,  with  District  staff,  suppliers, 
contractors, and the public 

 Differentiate between colors as related to cables and resistor color codes 

 Adhere to safety training and performance requirements 

 Enter confined spaces 

 Keep accurate records and make reports of work in progress. 
Interpersonal Effectiveness:  

 Demonstrate the ability to work effectively in a team‐based organization focused on 
continuous improvement 

 Establish and maintain a positive customer service attitude and effective working 
relationships with internal and external customers 

 Demonstrate strong two‐way communication skills, including the ability to listen, 
explain, and facilitate 

 Ability to ask for input 

 Offer help without being asked 

 Accept suggestions 

 Work with others to solve problems 

 Provide recognition and encouragement. 
Licenses, Certificates, or Credentials:  

 Must  possess  an  International  Society  of  Automation  (ISA)  Certification  as  a 
Controls System Technician Level II or California Water Environment Association 
(CWEA)  Grade  II  Electrical/Instrumentation  Certification  or  have  experience 
and/or  education  equivalent  to  a  journey  level  electrician/controls  technician, 
acceptable to USD.  

 Must complete the NACE (National Association of Corrosion Engineers) Cathodic 
Protection  Tester  Course  and  pass  the  Cathodic  Protection  Tester  certification 
examination one year of appointment to position. 

 Must  possess  a  valid  Class  C  California  driver's  license,  have  and  maintain  a 
satisfactory driving record, and be  insurable by the District  for the operation of 
District vehicles. 

95 of 122



Control Systems Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: September 2020 
Revision Date: September 2020 

Class Code: XXXX 

 

Control Systems Specialist                                                                                                            P a g e  | 7 of 8 

Other Requirements:  

 Must possess the physical characteristics to perform the critical and important duties 
of the class, including sufficient strength to lift parts and equipment weighing up to 50 
pounds  with  appropriate  equipment,  and  sufficient  stamina  to  perform  strenuous 
work for extended period of time.  

 Must attend training and safety sessions as assigned 

 Observe appropriate safety procedures and work to applicable codes and guidelines 

 Make appropriate use of related safety equipment as required 

 Follow NFPA  70E  guidelines  for  protection  from Arc  Flash  /  Arc  Blast  and  properly 
utilize electrical personal protective equipment; perform confined space entry.  

 Must be willing to work outdoors in a variety of weather conditions and work overtime 
as needed.  

 Will  be  required  to  be  in  an  on‐call  status  one  week  out  of  every  four  weeks. 
Unforeseen circumstances may result in being on‐ call more frequently 

 May be required to be clean shaven in order to wear respiratory protection equipment. 
 
WORKING CONDITIONS 
 
Environmental Conditions 
The essential duties of this classification require the ability work outdoors under various climatic 
and geographic conditions with potential exposure to a variety of chemicals, noise, temperature 
extremes, humidity and hazardous equipment and machinery; to work overtime as needed and 
subject to standby duty and emergency call‐outs as required;  physically capable of crawling in 
confined spaces,  responding to chemical spills, or climbing  ladders/stairs  to reach high places 
wearing respiratory protection equipment, including SCBA’s; to complete necessary Continuing 
Education (CEU) as required to obtain, maintain, and renew requisite certification 
 
Physical Conditions 
The essential duties of this classification require the ability to sit for extended periods of time in 
front of a computer; repetitive use of feet and hands to operate vehicles, equipment and tools; 
the ability to speak to verbally exchange ideas and information; to hear to receive verbal detailed 
information and instruction; to see at arm’s length to twenty feet with a good field of vision and 
the ability to distinguish basic colors; to walk twist, bend, crawl, reach, climb ladders and stairs 
and work  in  positions  and  spaces  that may  be  awkward  or  difficult  to  access;  to  lift  objects 
weighing up to 50 pounds; and finger dexterity and hand strength to operate a computer and 
related hardware and to grasp tools and equipment on a daily basis. 
 
 

96 of 122



Control Systems Specialist 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Established Date: September 2020 
Revision Date: September 2020 

Class Code: XXXX 

 

Control Systems Specialist                                                                                                            P a g e  | 8 of 8 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 
 
Disaster Service Worker 
Employees of Union Sanitary District are, by State and Federal law, Disaster Service Workers. In 
the event of a declaration of emergency, any employee may be assigned activities that promote 
the protection of public health and safety or the preservation of lives and property, either at the 
District or within the local, or their own community. 
 
Approved by the Board of Directors: XX/XX 
Revised:  
Position status: Classified, Non‐exempt (Skilled Crafts, Journey‐Level) 
Recruitment: Internal and External 

97 of 122



98 of 122



99 of 122



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
SEPTEMBER 28, 2020 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 12 

 
TITLE:  Discuss and Provide Direction Regarding Potential Use of Video for Virtual 

Board Meetings (This is a Direction Item)   
 
SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 
   
 
Recommendation 
 
Discuss and provide direction regarding potential use of video for Virtual Board Meetings. 
 
Discussion 
The Board directed staff to prepare a staff report to allow the Board to discuss potential use of 
video for Virtual Board Meetings.  
 
If the Board provides direction to staff to use video during Virtual Board Meetings, the following 
are some issues that need to be considered: 

 Directors would need to use a device with a camera enabled.  

 Adequate bandwidth will be required to accommodate video. 

 The District will need to acquire additional video equipment for staff. 

 Local visual considerations. 
  
 
Background 
Due  to  the  Coronavirus  Pandemic,  the  Board  of Directors  has  been  conducting  regular  and 
special Board Meetings virtually since March 2020.  Directors, staff, and members of the public 
have been able to virtually attend Board Meetings through the Zoom webinar platform.  Zoom 
offers  direct web  link  access  that  enables  participants  to  view  the  Board  Packet  as  shown 
through  screen  share  while  listening  to  the  meeting  and  provides  a  call‐in  option  for 

100 of 122



participants  to  listen  to Board Meetings  via  telephone.   While  there  is  an option  to  turn on 
video during Zoom meetings, the Board of Directors has not used the option to date. 
 
 
Previous Board Action 
None. 
 
 

101 of 122



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
SEPTEMBER 28, 2020 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 
TITLE: Status Report on Computer Purchase and Student Loan Program (This is an 

Information Item)  
 
SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Mark Carlson, Business Services Work Group Manager/CFO 
  
Recommendation 
Information only. 
 
Discussion 
Computer Purchase Loan Program 
The Computer Purchase Loan Program was authorized by the Board of Directors in 1989.  The program 
provides an opportunity for employees to receive an interest free loan for the purchase of approved 
technology related equipment.  Since that time, employees have utilized the program 390 times to 
purchase computer related equipment totaling $922,525 with an average purchase of $2,365.  The 
current terms of the program allow an employee to borrow a maximum of $3,300 for up to 3 years and 
to repay the loan through payroll deductions.  The program has a maximum District wide loan limit of 
$50,000 (including student loan maximum of $15,000). 
 
As can be seen in the chart below, there are currently 21 outstanding loans for a total of $26,738 with 
an average outstanding loan balance of $1,273.  During the year there were 8 new loans granted and 5 
loans paid off. 
 

Dollars Quantity

Balance July 1, 2019 26,922$        18

   New Loans 17,954 8

   Payments & Adjustments (18,138) (5)

Balance June 30, 2020 26,738$        21

Employee Computer Loan Program

 

102 of 122



 
Student Loan Program 
The Student Loan Program was created in 1995.  Research into the program has not identified any 
employees having taken advantage of the program since inception.  The program, as laid out in District 
Policy #5330, allows for a maximum annual interest free loan of up to $3,000 for qualifying education 
expenses. 
 
Background 
None 
 
Previous Board Action 
None 
 
 

103 of 122



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

SEPTEMBER 28, 2020 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA ITEM #14 

TITLE: Annual Report to Union City Fiscal Year 2020 (This is an Information Item) 

SUBMITTED: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Armando Lopez, Work Group Manager 
Tim Grillo, R&S Team Coach 

Recommendation 

Information only. 

Discussion 

A copy of the proposed District’s annual report to Union City for FY 2020 is attached for review. 

Background 

Union City Use Permit UP-4-95 requires the District to submit a report annually to the City 
Manager’s Office. The purpose of the report is to:  

1. Document the existing wastewater treatment plant flow
2. Provide a projection of the plant flow for the following year
3. Review compliance with effluent discharge limits
4. Provide a status report on progress made in the development of any new treatment

facilities outside of Union City limits

Previous Board Action 

None. 

104 of 122



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

Date: September 21, 2020 
 
Ms. Joan Malloy 
City Manager, City of Union City 
34009 Alvarado-Niles Road 
Union City, CA 94587 
 
 
SUBJECT:  SUBMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT FOR UNION SANITARY DISTRICT FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2020 
 
 
Dear Ms. Malloy, 
 
Pursuant to Union City Use Permit (UP-4-95), Union Sanitary District hereby submits its Annual 
Report for Fiscal Year 2020. 
 
Introduction 
 
The Union City Planning Commission approved Use Permit No. UP-4-95 on July 20, 1995, which 
allowed for the expansion of the Union Sanitary District (USD) Alvarado Wastewater Treatment 
Plant from a capacity of 35 million gallons per day (MGD) to 38 MGD. The Use Permit requires 
the District to submit an annual report to the City Manager’s office documenting the current 
wastewater flow received at the Alvarado Treatment Plant, a projection of flows for the next 
year, the current discharge limits imposed by the Regional Water Quality Control Board 
(RWQCB), and a status report of progress made toward development of any new facilities 
outside of Union City limits (Condition 9).  
 
A second condition (Condition 6), requiring an annual operations audit by an independent 
expert, was eliminated by mutual agreement of USD’s General Manager and Union City’s City 
Manager in January 2005 following more than 10 years of perfect NPDES permit compliance.  
 
 

105 of 122



Union City Annual Report Fiscal Year 2020 
Page 2 

Background 

Union Sanitary District, founded in 1918, collects and treats wastewater from the communities 
of Union City, Newark, and Fremont, California. The District owns and operates a wastewater 
treatment plant located in Union City. Treated effluent is discharged through the East Bay 
Dischargers Authority (EBDA) outfall into the San Francisco Bay. A portion of the effluent is 
diverted to the Hayward Marsh from the EBDA force main as a beneficial use of reclaimed 
wastewater. 

The Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Facility was completed in 1981 and was originally rated 
for a design flow of 19.7 MGD. A Plant Expansion Project increased the treatment capacity in 
1985 and further modifications were made in 1993. The firm, reliable treatment capacity of 33 
MGD was confirmed in 1997. Construction to renew and replace aging equipment is a continual 
and ongoing process. In 2019, a study of alternatives was completed to determine the upgrades 
necessary to meet more stringent requirements for nutrients that are expected in 2024 under 
the third Nutrient Watershed Permit. In 2020, the District began the conceptual design of 
improvements to remove nutrients in the future under the District’s Enhanced Treatment and 
Site Upgrade (ETSU) Program. 

Current Wastewater Flow 

The following is a summary of the average dry weather flow (ADWF) and annual average daily 
flow (AADF) for recent fiscal years. The Alvarado Treatment Facility is permitted to treat an 
ADWF flow of 33 MGD under the current National Pollution Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permit. The ADWF is defined as the average flow during the summer months of May 
through September. The AADF is defined as the annual average daily flow throughout the fiscal 
year, including both wet and dry seasons.  

Fiscal Year ADWF Permitted 
by NPDES, MGD 

Actual ADWF, 
MGD 

Actual AADF, 
MGD 

2016 33 21.9 22.8 

2017 33 22.7 24.4 

2018 33 23.3 23.3 

2019 33 23.0 23.7 

2020 33 23.1 22.9 

During FY20, an average effluent flow of .36 MGD was reused at the Hayward Shoreline Marsh. 

106 of 122



Union City Annual Report Fiscal Year 2020 
Page 3 

Projected Wastewater Flows 

The annual average daily flow (AADF) decreased slightly in FY20. However, the annual dry 
weather flow (ADWF) increased slightly from the previous year. We expect the wastewater flow 
to increase slightly in FY21. Based on the last five years’ flow data, we predict an AADF of 23.3 
MGD and an ADWF of 23.5 MGD for FY21. 

Discharge Compliance and Permit Limits 

We are pleased to report that the District has achieved full compliance with NPDES discharge 
requirements in FY20. USD was recognized by the National Association of Clean Water Agencies 
(NACWA) under their Peak Performance Award program for the 27th consecutive year. In 2020, 
USD received an eleventh Platinum award for calendar year 2019 from NACWA, which is 
awarded for maintaining perfect compliance with the NPDES permit for five consecutive years. 

The San Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board adopted the second Nutrient 
Watershed Permit in 2019. The permit includes monitoring requirements and nutrient loading 
targets for permitted agencies based on the subembayments that they discharge to in the San 
Francisco Bay. It is expected that the information collected for the watershed permit will lead 
to the establishment of nutrient limitations in the subsequent watershed permit in 2024. We 
anticipate that future changes to ammonia limitations could require substantial improvements 
to the treatment plant to provide for the removal of nutrients. 

Flow to the treatment plant has increased marginally in recent years and is not expected to 
exceed the permitted capacity of the treatment plant within our planning horizon. However, 
there has been an increase in the mass loading of solids. The District completed the Solids 
Capacity Assessment Study in September 2018 to determine whether the solids treatment 
systems have adequate capacity to treat the loading of conventional pollutants expected in the 
future. 

The Secondary Treatment Process Improvements Project was completed and accepted by the 
USD Board of Directors in August 2019. As a result of these studies, the District has assigned the 
ETSU Project to implement the recommended alternative identified by the Secondary 
Treatment Process Improvements Project. Design for the ETSU Project began in FY20.  

Development of Facilities Outside of Union City 

The ETSU Project will not increase the flow capacity of the USD treatment plant. As a result, the 
District has no plans for the construction of additional facilities outside of Union City. 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me at (510) 477-7517 
or email at armandol@unionsanitary.ca.gov. 

107 of 122

mailto:armandol@unionsanitary.ca.gov


Union City Annual Report Fiscal Year 2020 
Page 4 

Sincerely, 

Armando Lopez 
Manager, Treatment & Disposal 

108 of 122



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
SEPTEMBER 28, 2020 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 
TITLE:  COVID‐19 Update (This is an Information Item) 
 
SUBMITTED:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
   
     
Recommendation 
Information only. 
 
 
Discussion 
None. 
 
 
Background 
General Manager  Eldredge will  provide  an  update  on  the  District’s  COVID‐19  response  and 
staffing levels. 
 
 
Previous Board Action 
None. 
 

109 of 122



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/05/2020-09/18/2020

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

7/1/20 - 7/1/21 WC PROGRAM6690175561

$377,256.00
$523,417.00

CAL SANITATION RISK MNGT AUTH9/17/2020

07/1/20 - 07/1/21 PROPERTY INSURANCE RENEWAL6648

$146,161.00

9/17/2020

MP - AERATION BASIN MODIFICATIONS201180027175577

$369,965.08
$369,965.08

HAZEN AND SAWYER9/17/2020 114

CAMPUS BUILDINGS (ADMIN, FMC, OPS)201180033175508

$48,432.13
$48,432.13

HAZEN AND SAWYER9/10/2020 114

STANDBY POWER SYSTEM UPGRADE11381046175492

$40,868.38
$40,868.38

BROWN & CALDWELL CONSULTANTS9/10/2020 143

PHONE SYSTEM UPGRADE SERVICES21032175511

$35,627.78
$35,627.78

LOOKINGPOINT INC9/10/2020 173

2 GBT POLY SKID UNITS13870175539

$43,800.00
$35,040.00

UGSI CHEMICAL FEED INC9/10/2020 170

CREDIT: 2 GBT POLY SKID UNITS455

$-8,760.00

9/10/2020

MONTHLY CAL-CARD REPORT - AUG 2020533620200824175607

$27,469.18
$27,469.18

US BANK CORP PAYMENT SYSTEM9/17/2020

SERV TO 08/20/20 CS TRAINING TRAILER224720200827175523

$555.74
$26,220.63

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC9/10/2020 110

SERV TO 08/24/20 NEWARK PS761520200825

$25,269.42

9/10/2020 170

SERV TO 08/30/20 CATHODIC PROJECT096020200831

$53.88

9/10/2020 170

SERV TO 08/30/20 CHERRY ST PS380420200831

$341.59

9/10/2020 170

47,820 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE9017684133175581

$6,877.90
$20,114.44

KEMIRA WATER SOLUTIONS INC9/17/2020 110

46,440 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE9017683696

$6,741.25

9/17/2020 110

44,840 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE9017684566

$6,495.29

9/17/2020 110

Page 1 of 13110 of 122



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/05/2020-09/18/2020

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

4900 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE48704471175605

$3,539.65
$17,772.58

UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC9/17/2020 110

4900 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE48710317

$3,539.65

9/17/2020 110

4950.9 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE48704472

$3,576.42

9/17/2020 110

4900 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE48708507

$3,539.65

9/17/2020 110

4952 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE48706557

$3,577.21

9/17/2020 110

OLD ALAMEDA CREEK ROWB179724175543

$13,082.75
$15,990.25

WOODARD & CURRAN INC9/10/2020 143

HEADWORKS SCREENS REPLACEMENT179779

$2,907.50

9/10/2020 143

PLANT GIS GEOCORTEX ENHANCEMENTS2019343175504

$15,750.00
$15,750.00

FARALLON GEOGRAPHICS INC9/10/2020 173

4902.3 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE48702447175540

$3,541.31
$13,903.68

UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC9/10/2020 110

4799.5 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE48694845

$3,467.05

9/10/2020 143

4896.8 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE48696576

$3,537.34

9/10/2020 110

4648.5 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE48698563

$3,357.98

9/10/2020 110

JULY 2020 BIOSOLIDS DISPOSAL16395175538

$12,416.03
$12,416.03

SYNAGRO WEST LLC9/10/2020 110

SERV: JUL 2020 PLANT1419057175570

$11,341.88
$11,341.88

DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES9/17/2020 110

2300 GALS HYDROGEN PEROXIDE98722175542

$10,097.00
$10,097.00

USP TECHNOLOGIES9/10/2020 110

CAPACITY FEE UPDATE100320200328175554

$9,486.00
$9,486.00

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES9/17/2020 141

12 PIPE PATCH KITS WINTER69337175545

$6,505.98
$8,967.26

3T EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC9/17/2020

3 PIPE PATCH KITS WINTER69348

$2,461.28

9/17/2020

LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE - SEP 202037432220200901175583

$8,941.45
$8,941.45

LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS COMP9/17/2020

Page 2 of 13111 of 122



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/05/2020-09/18/2020

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

SEPTEMBER 2020 DELTA DENTAL STMT34301175524

$4,736.77
$7,919.57

PREFERRED BENEFIT INSUR ADMINS9/10/2020

SEPTEMBER 2020 VSP STMT34302

$3,182.80

9/10/2020

COGEN SAFI PROGRAMING4168221175610

$6,901.73
$6,901.73

WESTERN ENERGY SYSTEMS9/17/2020 170

41,860 LBS CLARIFLOC WE-5391477100175597

$5,705.91
$5,705.91

POLYDYNE INC9/17/2020 110

VEHICLE LIFT REPAIR1610175586

$4,962.06
$4,962.06

MAKAI SOLUTIONS9/17/2020 122

SERV TO: 09/03/20 - FREMONT BLVD4017275220200904175549

$163.97
$4,879.36

ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT9/17/2020 170

SERV TO: 09/03/20 - FREMONT BLVD4017420220200904

$61.21

9/17/2020 170

 SERV TO: 09/03/20 - FREMONT BLVD4017274120200904

$4,654.18

9/17/2020 170

SERV:  07/20/20 - 08/19/2015213332175490

$226.19
$4,775.68

AT&T9/10/2020

SERV:  07/20/20 - 08/19/2015213308

$22.06

9/10/2020

SERV:  07/20/20 - 08/19/2015213310

$4,527.43

9/10/2020

50 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1246745175503

$2,201.00
$4,597.00

ENTHALPY ANALYTICAL LLC9/10/2020 113

29 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1246581

$1,303.00

9/10/2020 113

20 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1247172

$1,093.00

9/10/2020 113

PUMP PARTS77049175497

$4,042.55
$4,042.55

COKER PUMP AND EQUIPMENT9/10/2020

HAZMAT CONSULTING SERVICES2000397821175547

$4,004.01
$4,004.01

AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES INC9/17/2020 170

PLANT ODOR CONTROL PILOT STUDYW8Y02800007175580

$3,582.50
$3,582.50

JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP, INC9/17/2020 143

COAT INSPECTION - HEADWORKS SCREENS REPLACEMENT PROJECT7126175555

$1,446.00
$3,374.00

BAY AREA COATING CONSULTANT9/17/2020 143

COAT INSPECTION - HEADWORKS SCREENS REPLACEMENT PROJECT7099

$1,928.00

9/17/2020 143

Page 3 of 13112 of 122



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/05/2020-09/18/2020

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

RECYCLE & ROLL OFF - SEP 2020916004305804175598

$3,221.32
$3,221.32

REPUBLIC SERVICES #9169/17/2020 120

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES - AUG 202019704175556

$3,215.00
$3,215.00

BAYSCAPE LANDSCAPE MANAGEMENT9/17/2020 122

TRUCK T3272 REPAIR68962175612

$3,182.10
$3,182.10

WEST-MARK9/17/2020 122

3 ASPHALT BLADES7941175594

$3,128.14
$3,128.14

NOR CAL DIAMOND PRODUCTS9/17/2020 123

29 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1248203175571

$1,248.00
$3,049.00

ENTHALPY ANALYTICAL LLC9/17/2020 113

48 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1247178

$1,801.00

9/17/2020 113

GRIT HAULING 08/03/202020081401175599

$1,398.27
$2,991.87

S&S TRUCKING9/17/2020 110

GRIT HAULING 08/18/202020082501

$815.25

9/17/2020 110

GRIT HAULING 08/20/202020082615

$778.35

9/17/2020 110

COMPUTER NOTE09102020175532

$2,900.11
$2,900.11

JOEL SALDANA9/10/2020

Page 4 of 13113 of 122



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/05/2020-09/18/2020

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9617476586175574

$17.06
$2,719.06

GRAINGER INC9/17/2020 111

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9617958781

$371.71

9/17/2020

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9617852950

$105.52

9/17/2020 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9618462502

$174.05

9/17/2020 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9620757774

$1,362.35

9/17/2020

1 BEACON WARNING LIGHT9616030210

$174.05

9/17/2020 170

12 POWER CORDS9617239091

$106.14

9/17/2020 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9616049756

$119.06

9/17/2020

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9613422345

$11.22

9/17/2020 111

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9613775411

$209.42

9/17/2020 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9619862429

$68.48

9/17/2020 170

REFUND # 290779831175525

$2,500.00
$2,500.00

PULTE HOME CORPORATION9/10/2020

REFUND # 2907910575175588

$2,500.00
$2,500.00

MASONIC HOME FOR ADULTS9/17/2020

20 BIOCEL FILTERS91558135175546

$2,452.03
$2,452.03

AAF INTERNATIONAL9/17/2020 111

Page 5 of 13114 of 122



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/05/2020-09/18/2020

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

4 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS613251175563

$185.24
$2,433.82

CALTEST ANALYTICAL LABORATORY9/17/2020 113

1 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS613254

$46.31

9/17/2020 113

9 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS613250

$416.79

9/17/2020 113

16 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS613265

$1,325.45

9/17/2020 113

3 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS613253

$138.93

9/17/2020 113

7 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS613333

$321.10

9/17/2020 113

GRIT HAULING 08/10 & 08/13/202020081912175531

$1,579.46
$2,329.46

S&S TRUCKING9/10/2020 110

GRIT BIN RENTAL 08/01/202020081911

$750.00

9/10/2020 110

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE - FMC - AUG 2020130265175521

$2,305.00
$2,305.00

NEW IMAGE LANDSCAPING CO9/10/2020 170

2564 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE75739175559

$746.63
$2,233.10

BRENNTAG PACIFIC INC9/17/2020 121

5128 LBS SODIUM HYDROXIDE75738

$1,486.47

9/17/2020 121

1 SURFACE PROZWV7191175565

$246.41
$2,095.70

CDW GOVERNMENT LLC9/17/2020 173

NEW SURFACE PRO DEVICE FOR WAREHOUSEZWD9149

$1,849.29

9/17/2020 173

SERV:  08/13/20 - 09/12/2015324332175552

$42.82
$1,924.68

AT&T9/17/2020

SERV:  08/10/20 - 09/09/2015295631

$980.83

9/17/2020

SERV:  08/13/20 - 09/12/2015324334

$87.36

9/17/2020

SERV:  08/13/20 - 09/12/2015324333

$65.87

9/17/2020

SERV:  08/13/20 - 09/12/2015324330

$747.80

9/17/2020

Page 6 of 13115 of 122



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/05/2020-09/18/2020

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

3 RELIEF VALVES50294175522

$2,805.05
$1,903.61

OWEN EQUIPMENT SALES9/10/2020 122

CREDIT: 1 RELIEF VALVE50294C

$-901.44

9/10/2020 122

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9613499574175507

$439.66
$1,895.60

GRAINGER INC9/10/2020

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9607587681

$832.92

9/10/2020

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9569318331

$410.84

9/10/2020

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9611640930

$212.18

9/10/2020 170

ALVARADO INFLUENT PS PUMPS AND VFDS190159175496

$1,870.50
$1,870.50

CAROLLO ENGINEERS9/10/2020 143

6 LAB TESTS116533216175572

$1,617.00
$1,617.00

FREMONT URGENT CARE CENTER9/17/2020 132

MACP INSPECTION MODULE INSTALLATION20845796175509

$1,587.50
$1,587.50

INFOR PUBLIC SECTOR, INC9/10/2020 122

AD: AERATION BLOWER 11 (HIGH SPEED)3385314175499

$1,569.36
$1,569.36

DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION9/10/2020 143

120 BX GLOVES4908249175512

$411.67
$1,535.74

MALLORY SAFETY AND SUPPLY LLC9/10/2020

90 BX GLOVES4907436

$1,124.07

9/10/2020

Page 7 of 13116 of 122



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/05/2020-09/18/2020

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS44301214175513

$14.03
$1,430.17

MCMASTER SUPPLY INC9/10/2020 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS44881755

$57.97

9/10/2020

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS44783943

$195.37

9/10/2020 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS44125781

$406.61

9/10/2020 170

250 DUST MASKS44863452

$73.35

9/10/2020

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS45032253

$682.84

9/10/2020

CREDIT: ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS44633102

$-599.30

9/10/2020

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS44278746

$599.30

9/10/2020

OPACITY TESTING - 18 VEHICLES1778175579

$1,425.00
$1,425.00

IN-USE SOLUTIONS INC9/17/2020 122

1 CHESTERTON SEALS29605924175596

$1,252.46
$1,252.46

PAN PACIFIC SUPPLY COMPANY9/17/2020

FMC TRAILER RENTAL - SEPT 20202076024175516

$1,245.43
$1,245.43

MOBILE MODULAR MANAGEMENT CORP9/10/2020 171

 JANITORIAL & BREAKROOM SUPPLIES731160500801175536

$100.93
$1,238.54

STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL9/10/2020

JANITORIAL & BREAKROOM SUPPLIES731095122801

$782.09

9/10/2020

JANITORIAL & BREAKROOM SUPPLIES731194349201

$272.13

9/10/2020

JANITORIAL & BREAKROOM SUPPLIES731095122802

$83.39

9/10/2020

MONTHLY AUTO PARTS STMT - AUG 202020200826175592

$1,119.00
$1,119.00

NAPA AUTO PARTS9/17/2020 122

UTILITY FEE/ANTENNA RENTAL20200828175567

$1,093.84
$1,093.84

COMMUNICATION & CONTROL INC9/17/2020 170

SALES & USE TAX 08/01/20 - 08/31/2020200915175562

$1,079.67
$1,079.67

STATE OF CALIFORNIA9/17/2020

5 CY ARGON9104466924175548

$1,022.26
$1,022.26

AIRGAS NCN9/17/2020 170

Page 8 of 13117 of 122



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/05/2020-09/18/2020

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS45171899175589

$37.80
$1,015.35

MCMASTER SUPPLY INC9/17/2020 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS45376067

$53.41

9/17/2020

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS45155903

$64.36

9/17/2020 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS45385100

$664.71

9/17/2020

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS44576351

$166.31

9/17/2020 123

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS45317625

$28.76

9/17/2020 170

AUGUST PEST CONTROL730686175489

$1,005.00
$1,005.00

A-PRO PEST CONTROL INC9/10/2020 170

REFUND # 2907412713.1175537

$500.00
$1,000.00

STREAMLINE PLUMBING & DRAIN9/10/2020

REFUND # 2907512713

$500.00

9/10/2020

08/20 - ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS20200825175569

$958.93
$958.93

DALE HARDWARE INC9/17/2020

ASTD COGEN PARTS4169161175611

$898.72
$898.72

WESTERN ENERGY SYSTEMS9/17/2020 170

JUL 2020 SERVICE FEES2522316414175553

$861.63
$861.63

BANK OF NEW YORK9/17/2020 136

CENTRIFUGE INCLINED CONVEYOR GB PARTS8701633357175533

$136.17
$825.68

SEW-EURODRIVE INC9/10/2020 170

CENTRIFUGE INCLINED CONVEYOR GB PARTS8701632738

$689.51

9/10/2020 170

SERV TO 08/30/20 HAYWARD MARSH892820200904175595

$62.74
$782.26

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC9/17/2020 110

SERV TO 08/30/20 FREMONT PS898220200904

$291.90

9/17/2020 170

SERV TO 08/30/2020 PASEO PADRE PS666720200904

$427.62

9/17/2020 170

PROGRAMMING CHANGES FOR OPTIMUM HQ1315175510

$718.75
$718.75

LONG THOUGHT SOLUTIONS LLC9/10/2020 132

Page 9 of 13118 of 122



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/05/2020-09/18/2020

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES15451210175558

$39.09
$674.54

BLAISDELL'S9/17/2020 170

1 SIT/STAND STATION15446590

$635.45

9/17/2020 144

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS1102403697175488

$269.95
$661.97

AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC9/10/2020

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWEL1102403743

$47.32

9/10/2020

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE1102403719

$344.70

9/10/2020

ASTD METAL, STEEL, STAINLESS & ALUMINUM216305175518

$648.18
$648.18

NAYLOR STEEL INC9/10/2020 122

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS1102407466175550

$301.98
$646.43

AMERIPRIDE SERVICES INC9/17/2020

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE1102407471

$344.45

9/17/2020

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES1988292001175600

$361.15
$599.31

SAN LEANDRO ELECTRIC SUPPLY9/17/2020

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES1982226004

$238.16

9/17/2020

7 TONS 1/2 MAX HMA TYPE A-R2158934175575

$584.21
$584.21

HANSON AGGREGATES INC9/17/2020 123

LAB SUPPLIES8802046217175609

$473.67
$576.40

VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC9/17/2020

LAB SUPPLIES8802021222

$102.73

9/17/2020 113

REFUND # 2907311707175528

$500.00
$500.00

RESCUE ROOTER9/10/2020

ASST JANITORIAL SUPPLIES604021374175578

$499.47
$499.47

HILLYARD/SAN FRANCISCO9/17/2020

PAINT & RELATED PAINT SUPPLIES21784509175564

$470.30
$470.30

CARBOLINE COMPANY9/17/2020 170

FREIGHT CHARGE31186765175606

$464.81
$464.81

UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE9/17/2020 170

12 MESH VEST24091376175591

$232.37
$437.47

MOTION INDUSTRIES INC9/17/2020

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS24090191

$205.10

9/17/2020 170

Page 10 of 13119 of 122



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/05/2020-09/18/2020

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

AD: CATHODIC PROTECTION IMPROVEMENTS - PLANT3389329175568

$407.68
$407.68

DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION9/17/2020 143

15 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS40005840175560

$364.35
$364.35

BUREAU VERITAS/ANALYSTS INC9/17/2020 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS1961899001175526

$332.98
$332.98

R&B COMPANY9/10/2020 123

LONGEVITY AWARD - 30 YEARS OF SERVICE20200904175517

$300.00
$300.00

MICHAEL MOSLEY9/10/2020 150

LONGEVITY AWARD - 30 YEARS OF SERVICE20200904175534

$300.00
$300.00

ROBERT SHENK9/10/2020 150

LONGEVITY AWARD - 30 YEARS OF SERVICE20200904175590

$300.00
$300.00

WILLIAM MEDEIROS9/17/2020

1 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS613070175495

$46.31
$277.86

CALTEST ANALYTICAL LABORATORY9/10/2020 113

5 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS613068

$231.55

9/10/2020 113

EXCAVATION TRAINING - YBARRA-MARTINEZ1357175576

$275.00
$275.00

HAWKEYE SAFETY9/17/2020 121

LONGEVITY AWARD - 25 YEARS OF SERVICE20200904175520

$250.00
$250.00

SHAWN NESGIS9/10/2020 150

PUBLIC OUTREACH5184175544

$238.00
$238.00

ZELAYA DESIGNS9/10/2020

SAFETY SHOES - M. DEL TORO23696000175491

$208.00
$208.00

BECK'S SHOES9/10/2020 121

EXP REIMB: CWEA MEMBERSHIP20200903175494

$190.00
$205.58

STUART BULLIS9/10/2020 123

EXP REIMB: RETIREMENT CELEBRATION20200902

$15.58

9/10/2020 120

STANDBY POWER UPGRADES82063175557

$200.00
$200.00

BEECHER ENGINEERING9/17/2020 143

EXP REIMB: SAFETY SHOES20200909175593

$169.34
$169.34

SHAWN NESGIS9/17/2020 120

EXP REIMB: OST 1ST QTR TEAM RECOGNITION20200908175535

$136.90
$136.90

JENNIFER SIO-KWOK9/10/2020 130

SEPTEMBER 2020 PAGER SERVICE20200901175602

$135.59
$135.59

SPOK INC9/17/2020 141

10 BX GLOVES4914411175587

$129.94
$129.94

MALLORY SAFETY AND SUPPLY LLC9/17/2020

Page 11 of 13120 of 122



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/05/2020-09/18/2020

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

PEST CONTROL - RODENTS730687175551

$125.00
$125.00

A-PRO PEST CONTROL INC9/17/2020 170

EXP REIMB: MILEAGE FOR CALL OUT20200914175603

$123.05
$123.05

DUSTIN STRASBURG9/17/2020 171

IRIDIUM SVC FEE SEP 2020108002175527

$112.00
$112.00

REMOTE SATELLITE SYSTEMS INT'L9/10/2020

60 7-LB BAGS OF ICE4095020602175573

$107.99
$107.99

GLACIER ICE COMPANY INC9/17/2020 120

EXP REIMB: RETIREMENT CELEBRATION20200902175529

$92.19
$92.19

JOSE RODRIGUES JR9/10/2020 120

SERV TO: 08/24/20 - BOYCE ROAD4088644120200826175486

$74.99
$74.99

ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT9/10/2020 170

1 RUBBER STAMP167838175506

$74.58
$74.58

FREMONT RUBBER STAMP CO INC9/10/2020 144

EXP REIMB: RETIREMENT CELEBRATION20200917175566

$60.85
$60.85

KEVIN CLENNON9/17/2020

COURIER SVCS: 1 BOARDMEMBER DELIVERY - 08/05/20423829175604

$47.95
$47.95

ULTRAEX LLC9/17/2020 141

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS5233700175487

$43.90
$43.90

ALL INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY9/10/2020 170

WIRELESS SERV 08/02/20-09/01/209861823366175608

$21.12
$21.12

VERIZON WIRELESS9/17/2020

SHIPPING CHARGES W/E 08/15/2098XW53330175541

$19.65
$19.65

UPS - UNITED PARCEL SERVICE9/10/2020 136

EXP REIMB:  SITE VISITS LUNCH20200909175582

$18.11
$18.11

THOMAS LAM9/17/2020 143

EXP REIMB: RETIREMENT CELEBRATION20200901175500

$17.09
$17.09

MANUEL DEL TORO9/10/2020 120

EXP REIMB: RETIREMENT CELEBRATION20200901175493

$16.96
$16.96

STEVE BULLIS9/10/2020 120

EXP REIMB: RETIREMENT CELEBRATION20200901175502

$16.96
$16.96

ART DIOSDADO9/10/2020 120

EXP REIMB: RETIREMENT CELEBRATION20200901175530

$15.09
$15.09

WALKER ROLLINS9/10/2020 120

EXP REIMB: RETIREMENT CELEBRATION20200902175498

$15.00
$15.00

FRANK COUTO9/10/2020 120

EXP REIMB: RETIREMENT CELEBRATION20200910175584

$14.71
$14.71

MATTHEW LUBINA9/17/2020 120

Page 12 of 13121 of 122



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/05/2020-09/18/2020

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

EXP REIMB: RETIREMENT CELEBRATION20200902175519

$14.55
$14.55

PAUL NELSON9/10/2020 122

EXP REIMB: RETIREMENT CELEBRATION20200901175515

$12.90
$12.90

MICHAEL MINCHACA9/10/2020 120

EXP REIMB: RETIREMENT CELEBRATION20200910175585

$12.27
$12.27

MICHAEL LUNA9/17/2020 120

EXP REIMB: RETIREMENT CELEBRATION20200901175505

$10.92
$10.92

CHARLES FERNANDEZ9/10/2020 120

EXP REIMB: RETIREMENT CELEBRATION20200901175501

$10.15
$10.15

MICHAEL DELA ROSA9/10/2020 120

CENTRIFUGE INCLINED CONVEYOR GB PARTS8701633358175601

$1.58
$1.58

SEW-EURODRIVE INC9/17/2020 170

 11

 63

 3

 128

Credit Memos :

$0 - $1,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Over $100,000 :

Total:

Invoices:

 3

 208 

-10,260.74

Checks:

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Total:

Over $100,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$0 - $1,000 :

 1,394,771.38

 18,119.84

 152,225.50

 331,043.96

 893,382.08

 1,394,771.38

 61

 49

 14

 2

 126

Page 13 of 13122 of 122


	1 09282020_Agenda
	2 09282020 BOD Mtg Cmte Ags
	09232020 Legislative Cmte Ag
	09242020 Legal Community Affairs Cmte Ag
	09242020 Personnel Cmte Ag
	09252020 Budget and Finance Cmte Ag
	09252020 EIT Cmte Ag

	4 09142020 Minutes
	5 09162020 Special Meeting Minutes
	6.1 August 2020 Monthly Ops Summary
	6.2 August 2020 Odor Report
	6.3 Odor Report Map August 2020
	6.4 Monthly Ops
	1. Hours Work Report
	Charts081920
	Charts for Report

	Report081920
	Report


	2. Budget & Finance
	3. Revenues & Expenses
	Charts

	4. Business Services Group Activities Report
	5. Portfolio Holdings Charts
	6. Portfolio Holdings Report
	7. Portfolio Activity Report

	6.5 TS08-2020_MOR_Aug
	Construction Projects
	Alvarado Influent Pump Station Improvements Project – Thomas
	Alvarado Influent Valve Box Rehabilitation Project – Kevin
	Headworks Screens Replacement Project – Thomas
	Primary Digester No. 2 Rehabilitation Project – Derek
	Primary Digester No. 7 Project – Curtis
	Design/Study Projects
	Aeration Blower No. 11 Project - Derek
	Cathodic Protection System Improvements Project - Thomas
	Centrifuge Building Improvements Project – Somporn
	Emergency Outfall Improvements Project – Andrew 
	Force Main Condition Assessment – Andrew
	Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project Phase 3 – Andrew
	FY21 Cast Iron/Pipe Lining Project – Andrew
	Gravity Sewer Rehabilitation / Replacement Project – Phase VII – Andrew
	Irvington Basin Masterplan Update - Andrew
	Irvington Basin Reinforced Concrete Pipe Rehabilitation Project - Andrew
	Odor Control Alternatives Study – Kevin
	Odor Control Pilot Study - Somporn
	Pump Stations Chemical System Improvements Project - Thomas
	Standby Power Generation System Upgrade Project – Kevin
	WAS Thickener Replacement Project – Derek
	Wet Weather Flow Management – Calcium Thiosulfate Chemical Feed System – Kevin/Blake

	6.6 CS August 2020 Ops Rpt
	6.7 FMC_Ops_Report_August2020
	New Report Page

	6.8_TD_Ops_August_2020
	9 AwardBlower11_mfb
	10 Job Desc and Salary for EHS Specialist and Senior HR Analyst
	10.1 SR - 2 New Job Descriptions
	10.2 EHS Specialist Job Description
	10.3 SR HR Analyst

	11 Control Systems Specialist and Side Letter Agmt
	11.1 SR - Control Systems Specialist and Side Letter Agmt
	11.2 Control Systems Specialist Job Description
	11.3 SIDE LETTER - Section 34.4 Control Systems Specialist

	12 Board Direction Regarding Potential Use of Video for Board Meetings
	13 Aug 2020 Update Computer and Education Loan Program
	14 UC Report FY2020
	Union City Annual Report 2020 Board Item
	Union City Annual Report 2020

	15 COVID-19 Update
	16 Bd Ck Reg Rpt09182020



